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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on The Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s continuing
operations recorded revenue of approximately HK$47,066,000
(2012: HK$41,783,000) representing tuition fee revenue and
sales of educational products. Gross profit for the year under
review was approximately HK$21,968,000 (2012:
HK$28,589,000), representing a gross profit margin of 46.7%
for the year under review.

During the year, cost of sales for continuing operations amounted
to approximately HK$25,098,000 (2012: HK$13,194,000)
representing the direct wages and overheads incurred in the
distance learning courses.

Other income for the year under review was approximately
HK$667,000 (2012: HK$222,000) representing the gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$241,000 (2012: Nil), a sundry income of approximately
HK$383,000 (2012: HK$51,000).

Administrative expenses for continuing operations for the year
under review were approximately HK$34,917,000 (2012:
HK$33,128,000), of which staff related costs were approximately
HK$17,116,000 (2012: HK$13,755,000). Professional fees were
approximately HK$5,617,000 (2012: HK$6,532,000)
representing the costs of conducting due diligences and
obtaining financial advices with ongoing projects.

Other expenses for the year under review were approximately
HK$462,000 (2012: HK$3,268,000) representing the loss on
redemption of convertible notes for approximately HK$209,000
(2012: HK$NIl), and a charitable donation for approximately
HK$251,000 (2012: HK$736,000).

Finance costs during the year were approximately HK$9,807,000
(2012: HK$7,510,000). They primarily consist of accretion of
interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost of
approximately HK$12,029,000 (2012: HK$7,667,000) and fair
value changes on the derivative portion of convertible notes has
gain of approximately HK$2,222,000 (2012: HK$157,000 gain).

During the year, the loss from discontinued operations was
approximately HK$63,531,000, which included impairment
losses on goodwill of approximately HK$56,008,000 and
impairment losses on other receivables of approximately
HK$11,116,000.
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resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with cash
revenue generated internally from operating activities and
additional funds from borrowings. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group has current assets of approximately HK$133,718,000
(2012: HK$102,267,000), including bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$15,101,000 (2012: HK$22,309,000). Total
non-current assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,165,000 (2012: HK$69,934,000), representing property,
plant and equipment. Total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$134,883,000 (2012: HK$172,201,000) as at
31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowing. Total current liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$137,162,000 (2012: HK$127,016,000),
which mainly comprised trade and other payables, other
borrowings, convertible notes and the related financial
derivatives. Total non-current liabilities of the Group were
approximately HK$91,569,000 (2012: HK$68,024,000), which
comprised the convertible notes and other borrowing. Total
liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$228,731,000
(2012: HK$195,040,000). As at 31 December 2013, the Group
had net liabilities of HK$93,848,000 (2012: HK$22,839,000 net
liabilities).

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio of the Group, as expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, was approximately 1.7 as at 31
December 2013 (2012: 1.1).

Share Capital

As at 1 January 2013, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.50 each and the issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$735,939,451 divided into
1,471,878,902 shares of HK$0.50 each.
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On 4 December 2012, the Company proposed to implement
the capital reorganisation by way of (1) the capital reduction;
and (2) the sub-division of unissued shares. Pursuant to the
capital reduction, the issued share capital of the Company will
be reduced by HK$0.40 per existing share by cancelling an
equivalent amount of paid-up capital per existing share in issue
so that the par value of each new share in issue will be HK$0.10
and the relevant amount of issued capital thereby cancelled will
be made available for issue of new shares. Each existing share
in the authorized but unissued share capital of the Company
was proposed to be sub-divided into 5 shares of a nominal value
of HK$0.10 each.

The proposal was approved in an extraordinary general meeting
on 18 February 2013 and subject to further legal proceedings in
Cayman lIslands.

On 22 July 2013 (Cayman Islands time), the relevant court order
confirming the capital reduction and the minutes approved by
the Court pursuant to the Companies Law were filed with the
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands and all other
conditions of the capital reorganisation were fulfilled. The capital
reorganisation became effective on Monday, 22 July 2013 (after
trading hours).

During the year, shares were issued upon conversion of
convertible notes as follows:

Principal amount of

Date of conversion
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Conversion Number of
shares issued

FETROBE

price
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142,344,000

14,234,400

142,344,000

As at 31 December 2013, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each and the issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$161,422,290 divided into
1,614,222,902 shares of HK$0.10 each.
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\anvertible Notes
Convertible Notes 2009

Pursuant to the acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical (BVI)
Group, the Company issued convertible notes (“Convertible
Notes 2009") as partial settlement of the acquisition
consideration on 23 April 2009. The aggregate principal of the
Convertible Notes 2009 amounted to HK$32,770,000. The
Convertible Notes 2009 are interest free, with a principal amount
of approximately HK$20,150,000 maturing in 48 months from
the date of issue and the remaining principal amount of
approximately HK$12,620,000 maturing in 24 months from the
date of issue and convertible into ordinary shares at conversion
price of HK$1.01 (2010: HK$1.57) per share, subject to
adjustments.

On 15 July 2010, an aggregate principal of the Convertible Notes
2009 amounted to HK$6,780,000 were issued as the final
payment for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
[IN Medical (BVI) Group. The Convertible Notes 2009 are interest
free, with a principal amount of HK$4,154,106 maturing in 48
months from the date of issue and the remaining principal
amount of HK$2,625,894 maturing in 24 months from the date
of issue and convertible into ordinary shares at conversion price
of HK$1.01 per share, subject to adjustments.

As at 1 January 2013, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Notes 2009 was HK$12,221 (2012:
HK$10,162,155). The exercise in full of conversion rights vested
with the Company’s outstanding Convertible Notes 2009 would
result in the issue and allotment of 12,100 new shares in the
Company.

The Convertible Notes 2009 were fully redeemed on 18 July
2018.
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Convertible Notes 2011

The Group had reached several agreements with the holders of
the Convertible Notes 2008 which became mature on 28
February 2011, and issued a promissory note for approximately
HK$50 million for a settlement. In order to be able to raise
sufficient fund for the settlement, the Group issued two tranches
of convertible notes (“Convertible Notes 2011 A”) on 9 May 2011
and (“Convertible Notes 2011 B”) on 11 May 2011. The
aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 A amounted to
HK$89,999,934, bearing an interest of 1% per annum, maturing
in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary
shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, subject to
adjustments.

The aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 B amounted
to HK$36,200,000, bearing an interest of 1% per annum,
maturing in 6 months from the date of issue, and convertible
into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share,
subject to adjustments. On 11 November 2011, the maturity
date was successfully postponed for another 6 months to 11
May 2012. Upon maturity, the principal amount together with
the interests due were fully settled by a promissory note.

As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding principal amount of
the Convertible Notes 2011 A was HK$29,999,934. The exercise
in full of the vested conversion rights would result in the issue
and allotment of 59,999,868 new shares of the Company.

On 21 July 2011, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with a group of independent subscribers for the
issuance of some convertible notes in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$42,000,000, bearing an interest rate of 3% per
annum, maturing in 12 months from the date of issue, and
convertible into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50
per share, subject to adjustments. Subsequently, the Group
issued two tranches of convertible notes (“Convertible Notes
2011 C”) on 25 August 2011 for the principal amount of
HK$19,500,000 and (“Convertible Notes 2011 D”) on 14
September 2011 for the principal amount of HK$22,500,000.
Of which, tranche C was fully converted in 2011. On 10
September 2012, the maturity date of the tranche D was
postponed for another 6 months to 7 March 2013. On 7 March
2013, the maturity date of the tranche D was further postponed
for 12 months to 6 March 2014.
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kat 1 January 2013, the outstanding principal amount of the

onvertible Notes 2011 D was HK$22,500,000. The exercise in
fuII of the vested conversion rights would result in the issue and
allotment of 45,000,000 new shares of the Company. A
noteholder obtained a court order for the principal amount of
K$9,700,000 forcing the payment of debt on 3 January 2013.
The Company has complied in full.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the instrument
constituting the convertible notes, no adjustments will be made
to the conversion price of the outstanding convertible notes, as
a result of the capital reorganisation becoming effective on the
effective date.

As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding principal amount of
the Convertible Notes 2011D was HK$12,800,000 and its
maturity date is 6 March 2014. The exercise in full of the vested
convertible rights would result in the issue and allotment of
25,600,000 new shares of the Company.

On 6 March 2014, the Company has redeemed one of the
Convertible Notes 2011D with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 in accordance with notice from the holder. The
Company is contacting the holder of the Convertible Notes
2011D with the principal amount of HK$2,800,000 in order to
settle the convertible notes. As at the date of this report, the
Company has not received any reply or notice from the holder
and the Company has the funds available for redemption.

Convertible Notes 2012

Pursuant to the acquisition of 100% interest in Everjoy
Technology Development Corporation, the Company issued
convertible notes (“ETCN-1, and ETCN-2”) as partial settlement
of the acquisition consideration on 20 December 2012. The
aggregate principal of the ETCN-1 and ETCN-2 amounted to
HK$9,611,906, bearing an interest of 1% per annum, maturing
in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary
shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, subject to
adjustments.
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As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the ETCN-1 and ETCN-2 was HK$9,611,906. The
exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result in
the issue and allotment of 19,223,812 new shares of the
Company.

Pursuant to the acquisition of 100% interest in Everjoy
International Media Corporation, the Company issued convertible
notes (“EICN-1, EICN-2 and EICN-3”) as partial settlement of
the acquisition consideration on 20 December 2012. The
aggregate principal of the EICN-1, EICN-2 and EICN-3 amounted
to HK$58,235,956, bearing an interest of 1% per annum,
maturing in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible
into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share,
subject to adjustments.

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the EICN-1, EICN-2 and EICN-3 was HK$58,235,956.
The exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result
in the issue and allotment of 116,471,912 new shares of the
Company.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the instrument
constituting the convertible notes, no adjustments will be made
to the conversion price of the outstanding convertible notes, as
a result of the capital reorganisation becoming effective on the
effective date.

Convertible Notes 2014

On 29 November 2013, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a subscriber pursuant to which the Company
has agreed to issue, and the subscriber has agreed to subscribe
for the convertible notes (“CN2014-1") with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$6,000,000 maturing in 12 months from
the date of issue at 1% annual coupon rate, which may be
converted into 60,000,000 shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.10 per share (subject to adjustment). On the same day,
the Company also entered into another subscription agreement
with another subscriber pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to issue, and the subscriber has agreed to subscribe for
the convertible notes (“CN2014-2") with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$5,000,000 maturing in 12 months from the date
of issue at 1% annual coupon rate, which may be converted
into 50,000,000 shares at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share (subject to adjustment).
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ku‘thermore on 10 December 2013, the Company entered into

subscription agreement with a subscriber pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to issue, and the subscriber has agreed
to subscribe for the convertible notes (“CN2014-3”) with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 maturing in 12
months from the date of issue at 1% annual coupon rate, which
may be converted into 100,000,000 shares at the conversion
price of HK$0.10 per share (subject to adjustment). On the same
day, the Company also entered into another subscription
agreement with another subscriber pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to issue, and the subscriber has agreed
to subscribe for the convertible notes (“CN2014-4") with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$4,234,400 maturing in 12
months from the date of issue at 1% annual coupon rate, which
may be converted into 42,344,000 shares at the conversion price
of HK$0.10 per share (subject to adjustment).

On 19 December 2013, the conversion rights attaching to
CN2014-3 and CN2014-4 have been exercised in full and hence
142,344,000 shares have been issued.

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Notes 2014 was HK$11,000,000.
The exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result
in the issue and allotment of 110,000,000 new shares of the
Company.

Foreign exchange exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Although the
exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi has
been moderately changing, it remains relatively stable. As the
expenditure in PRC was covered by the sales in PRC, the
management considers that the Group has no significant foreign
exchange exposures. Foreign exchange risk arising from the
normal course of operations is considered as minimal. As at 31
December 2013, the Group has no foreign currency borrowings
and has not used any financial instrument for hedging the foreign
exchange risk.
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Significant investments and material
acquisition

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no significant
investments were made by the Group (2012: Major transactions
on the acquisition of 100% shareholding interest in Everjoy
Technology Development Corporation and Everjoy International
Media Corporation (“Everjoy”))

Contingent liabilities and charges on the
Group’s assets

There were no significant contingent liabilities or charges on the
Group’s assets as at 31 December 2013 (2012: nil).

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of an internet
platform for the facilitation of education program in Chinese
medicine and other advisory and training programs.

On 1 July 2010, the Joint Construction of Network Education
College of Beijing University of Chinese Medicine Agreement
(R RPEEANZHERHE 2R HEE) (“Joint Construction
Agreement”) entered into between Beijing University of Chinese
Medicine (1t 7 A7 B8 %5 K 2 and Hunan 1IN Medical Network
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan IIN Medical”), a
subsidiary of 1IN Medical (BVI), was successfully renewed. In
accordance with the Joint Construction Agreement, Hunan IIN
Medical’s entitlement to share 60% of the profits of Distance
Education College of Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (1b
TR BB K B FE B 220 (“Distance Education College”) is
reduced to 51% profit-sharing percentage during the year 2010
while all other terms and conditions thereunder are not less
favourable than those under the Joint Construction Agreement.
This e-learning business remained the core business of the
Group in 2013.
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Lan attempt to expand its income stream and diversify its

siness spectrum, the Company has acquired the entire share
Capltal of Everjoy Technology Development Corporation and
Everjoy International Media Corporation (“Everjoy”) in 2012. The
completion of this acquisition was done in December 2012,
however it did not make significant contribution to the
performance in 2012. The businesses of Everjoy started to record
revenue in the second quarter of 2013 and the performance of
Everjoy was unsatisfactory to the Group. The profit made by
Everjoy during the first six months in the year 2013 was far below
the expectation of the Board of the Company. It is also expected
that the profit of Everjoy will not be greatly improved unless
substantial resources are allocated thereto.

In view of the above, it is decided to dispose of Everjoy and to
devote resources to its existing business and any other potential
businesses, if any. On 31 October 2013 (after trading hours),
the Company entered into the an agreement with the purchaser
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to sell, and the
purchaser has agreed to purchase, the entire share capital of
Everjoy at the consideration, which was determined based on
the fair values of Everjoy assessed by the independent
professional valuer jointly appointed by the parties to the
agreement.

On 27 February 2014, Roma Appraisals Limited, being an
independent professional valuer jointly appointed by the parties
to the agreement, issued its reports on the fair values of Everjoy.
Thus, the considerations for the disposal of Everjoy at
RMB20,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$26,368,000)
has been fixed. The completion of the disposal took place on
12 March 2014.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 32 employees
(2012: 43 employees) (including executive directors). For the
year under review, the total staff costs amounted to
approximately HK$17,116,000 (2012: HK$13,755,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$3,361,000 over
the previous year.
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The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees were kept
at a market level and employees were rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group’s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.
Staff benefits include contribution to the mandatory provident
fund and share options. Share options were granted to
employees of the Group in the current year, whereby comparative
details are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

PROSPECTS

The Group’s existing e-learning business will remain the core
business and main cash generator in the near future. This
business is expected to grow in a rather stable manner.

As usual, the Group will implement certain cost-effective
measures to streamline the operation so as to enhance the
profitability and value of this e-learning business. The Company
will continue to look for opportunities for our existing business,
particularly in developing both vertically and horizontally within
the Group’s existing medical education platform, expanding
further into our service network, increase the shareholders’ value
and reduce business risk.

In addition, the Company will continue to look for other attractive
investments in the PRC and locally in an attempt to diversify
into different business areas to reduce the reliance upon existing
e-learning business and strengthen the positive cash flow and
earnings for the Group in the long run.

REEER ZFHMEEFEFR ISR
AEBEEFinn 2 BRI AR
HTHERRESHEH - EEENEEHIE R
R BRI - MAFE - WEAANSKENE S KH
FERE - AR EFITEN I 5 R I AESS

Al =
REBIRENBKAB EB ARG EER RBIIN
BROEBREBRESRIR - KAEBAHEREE
E o

AEEK R EERE TAXNANEEREZNE
i ARBREEBRIZ - REBEHEXBNEN R
NREBE - ARBGEERRPIRNEEBSHIN
BREE  FRHIRRARHAKENREBREAS T
BEITREALAME - - T ERBRANREELE
EmRARREEREEEERR -

SO RRBEEEETE LA S HREMAEAR
SINHMIRE - ERBEREHMER B AR LR
BORRHE EBNEKBAREAAEENRALE
BeREREFN -



35

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

/) EEREREEAEERE

(i

y

.

"

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yuan Wei (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2013 and
further appointed as the authorised representative and
compliance officer of the Company on 14 February 2014; Mr.
Yuan holds an associate degree in Heilongjiang Academy of
Finance and Management for Comrades (2814 B B &% %
I £27). He joined the Beijing Commercial Bank (1t 5% % ¥ 68
17) in 1993 and worked for 12 years. He left the position of
manager at the credit department of the Beijing Commercial
Bank in 2005. Mr. Yuan then engaged in the finance-related
business and has gained 20 years of experience in the financial
and banking sector. Mr. Yuan is mainly responsible for the
strategy formulation of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Yuan did not hold any directorships
in any listed public company in the last three years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Xiangjun (“Mr. Li”), aged 42, was appointed as a non—
executive director of the Company on 7 December 2012. Mr. Li
received a bachelor degree in law in the People’s Republic of
China in 1996. In 20083, he obtained the certificate of graduation
from the master degree program for international economic law
of the University of International Business and Economics in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Li has been engaged in the legal
services industry since 1999. He is currently a practising lawyer
in the People’s Republic of China and a member of the Beijing
Lawyers Association. He used to be the Corporate Law
Consultant or Legal Consultant for Special Affairs for large state—
owned enterprises, including China FAW Group, Lenovo Group
and China Life Insurance Group, and large foreign enterprises,
including Asia Link Group Inc., Zhenglin Food Co., Ltd. and
Dongguan Hsu Chi Foods Co. Limited. From 22 September 2008
to 11 June 2009, Mr. Li was an executive director of the
Company. From 24 June 2010 to 22 October 2012, Mr. Li was
an independent non-executive director of Superb Summit
International Group Limited (stock code: 1228), whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
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Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Since 11 June 2009, Mr.
Li has been a director of China E-Learning (Hong Kong)
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Save as disclosed herein, prior to this appointment, Mr. Li does
not hold any position with the Company and its subsidiaries
and he does not hold any directorship in other listed companies
nor has any other major appointment or qualification in the last
three years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Qunsheng (“Mr. Li”), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, member of the nomination committee and member
of the remuneration committee of the Company on 7 February
2014. Mr. Li was graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics in China in 1982 and is currently a certified public
accountant in China. From 1982 to 1993, Mr. Li served in the
Ministry of Finance, Investment Department of the National Audit
Office and the China Audit Administration. In 1993, he served
as vice president of BOT investment & Development Corporation
and was in charge of the financial affairs of the company as well
as the management of its subsidiaries. He was also involved in
planning the investments into high-grade highways and M&A
activities. Mr. Li left office in 1997, and then joined Golden Sino
(China Infrastructure) Development Holdings Limited as general
manager, responsible for project planning, negotiations, project
construction management, capital operation etc. In 1999, Mr.
Li joined Shenzhen Xiansheng Technology Development Co.,
Ltd. as chief executive officer, responsible for daily operation
and management of the company and capital operation of the
company. Mr. Li joined Ever Crown International (HK) Limited in
2002 upon its invitation and served as chief executive officer.
After that, Mr. Li joined Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co.,
Ltd. in 2009 as managing director, and has been responsible
for managing the Guangzhou City Nansha Port Expressway
project since then.

Save as disclosed herein, prior to the appointment with the
Company, Mr. Li does not hold any position with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries nor did he hold any directorship or any
other major appointment or qualification in other listed
companies in the last three years.
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'h:. Huang Chung Hsing (“Dr. Huang”), aged 60, was

pointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of audit committee of the Company on 14 August 2008.
Dr. Huang holds a Ph.D. degree in Management Science and
Information Systems from the University of Texas at Austin,
U.S.A. and a Bachelor’s degree of Science in Electrical
Engineering from National Taiwan University. Dr. Huang is the
Associate Dean of College of Management, National Taiwan
University. He is also the chairman of the Committee of Service
Management of Chinese Management Association in Taiwan and
the associate researcher of Health Management Center of
National Taiwan University Hospital in Taiwan. He has previously
held senior positions in various universities and banks such as
Beijing University in China and Bank of SinoPac. Dr. Huang has
extensive experience in service operation management, business
decision making and management of innovation.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Huang does not hold any other
position in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did he
hold any directorship in any public listed company in the last
three years.

Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy (“Ms. Li”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, member of the audit
committee and member of the remuneration committee of the
Company on 19 November 2013. Ms. Li received her Bachelor
of Art and Bachelor of Finance in China. She started her first job
in Fuji Xerox Co. Ltd in Sydney in 1986 and assigned as the
branch manager of National Australia Bank in Taiwan in 1994.
Later in 2001,
Management of Deutsche Bank in Sydney and assigned to Hong

Ms. Li joined as director of Private Wealth

Kong as director of Investment Banking Division of Deutsche
Bank AG in 2008. Ms. Li left Deutsche Bank AG in 2010 and
joined Nomura Securities, Investment Banking Division as
executive director. Ms. Li has been the director of Credit Suisse,
Hong Kong and China in the last 12 months. Ms. Li has over 15
years experience in corporate finance and IPO with excellent
relationship with senior government officials in China, Australia,
Taiwan, Cambodia and Burma.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Li does not hold any other position
in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did she hold any
directorship in any public listed company in the last three years.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) presents herewith
the annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group'’s results for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 42 to 156.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend
in respect of the reporting year (2012: HK$ nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results
of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 December
2013 prepared on the basis set out in the note below:

2013
“E-c=F
HK$'000
THr
Revenue from continuing REBBOLEE
operations ZWA 47,066
Loss before tax from REBBELEE
continuing operations ZBRERER 22,551
Loss from discontinued operations 7 & £ 4 | 44 £ 7
BB 63,531
Net loss after tax BhaEEFSE 86,082
Total assets EEfRE 134,883
Total liabilities BEAE 228,731
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41,783 40,140 38,575 23,253
16,213 32,266 52,079 475,636
16,213 32,266 52,079 475,378
172,201 123,788 111,400 94,556
195,040 138,502 163,282 330,862
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Movements of property, plant and equipment are set out in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options during
the year are set out in notes 28 and 38 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible notes during
the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 48 and
note 29 to the consolidated financial statement respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company did not have any reserve
available for cash distribution (2012: HK$ nil). In accordance
with the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company’s share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2013.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE
OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Group and the Company did not have any management
services contract for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to HK$251,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable

to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

BRI /;/
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Revenue KA
— the largest customer - BAEP
— five largest customer — AREF

Cost of goods sold HEEm
and services provided RIBHERE Z KA
— the largest services provider — AR ERS
— five largest services providers — AR HER

n/a ~EHA n/a “~ i@ A
n/a ~E A n/a “~ i@ /A
21% 52%
49% 83%
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r‘Yﬁ;]) provide the largest and the five largest customers’

hudents are our major customers. It is therefore not applicable
percentages on our revenue income.

None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers
or service providers noted above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and at
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Hong (resigned on 14 February 2014)
Ms. Wei Jianya (resigned on 19 November 2013)
Mr. Yuan Wai

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Li Xiangjun
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak (resigned on 7 February 2014)
Ms. Li Bailing (resigned on 19 November 2013)
Mr. Li Qunsheng

Dr. Huang Chung Hsing

Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
that all independent non-executive directors are independent
to the Group in accordance with the terms of the guidelines as
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yuan Wei, Mr. Li Qunsheng and Ms. Li Ya Ru
Nancy will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Yuan Wei has entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years. These service contracts may
be terminated by either party giving not less than three months’
notice to the other party.

Mr. Li Xiangjun, the non-executive director and Dr. Huang Chung
Hsing, the independent non-executive director have entered into
service contract with the Company for a term of three years.
These service contracts may be terminated by either parties
giving not less than three months’ notice to the other party.

Mr. Li Qunsheng, the independent non-executive director, has
entered into service contract with the Company for a term of
two years. This service contract may be terminated by either
parties giving not less than three months’ notice to the other

party.

Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy, the independent non-executive director,
has not been appointed for a fixed term of service.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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'‘REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including its Directors,
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits include insurance and medical
cover as well as share option scheme. Details of share option
scheme are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The determination of remuneration of the Directors of the
Company had taken into consideration of their expertise and
job specifications.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company on 23 May 2011. On
11 December 2013, the Company granted 132,000,000 share
options (the “Options”) to individuals (the “Grantees”) under the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 23 May 2011.
Details of share option scheme are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO;
or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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Long positions

Name of Directors Ordinary
and Chief Executive Capacity shares

EERTETBRAEHS BEER

Chen Hong (Director) (Note) Beneficial owner 79,510,480

Number of shares or

underlying shares held Percentage
RO REERAEE of issued
Share share capital
options Total HE T
B IR A st RAE DL
16,377,306 95,887,786 5.87%
R (FH) (M) EmEAA
Yuan Wei (Director) Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.61%
RE(EH) EmEAA
Wang Hui (Chief Executive Beneficial owner - 6,377,306 6,377,306 0.39%
Officer)
FE (THAER) EmEAA
Li Xiangjun (Director) Beneficial owner 313,590 6,712,954 7,026,544 0.43%
ZHE(ES) EmEAA

Note: Mr. Chen Hong was an executive director until his resignation
effect from 14 February 2014 as disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 14 February 2014. He held less than 5%
of the total share capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
other Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short position in shares, debentures or underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations which
was required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO;
or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares and share options” above and
“Share option scheme” in note 38, at no time during the year
was the Group, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Group or
any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS DISCLOSABLE UNDER
C"THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, so far as known to any Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares or underlying shares
of the Company

Name of shareholder

Capacity
BRREH &4

Beneficial owner

BERXHEEA

Yang Dong Jun
BRE

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited Investment manager

RERKE

Liu Yang (note)

21 (B 33) corporation
REEEE s

Lau Tsz Fui Beneficial owner

2F= E=BEAA

Note: According to the disclosure of interests notice filed, Ms. Liu
Yang is deemed to be in control of Atlantis Capital Holdings
Limited, Ms. Liu Yang is deemed to be interested in the
105,002,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Interest of a controlled
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INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review, neither the Directors nor the
substantial shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates had any interest in business that competes, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA
Limited as auditors of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Yuan Wei

Executive Director

Hong Kong
26 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

EREBRS

'ﬂ.e Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of

roorate governance and believes that good corporate
governance can (i) enhance management effectiveness and
efficiency; (ii) increase the transparency of the Company; (iii)
enhance risk management and internal control of the Company
and (iv) safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange which sets out the principles of good corporate
governance, the provisions of the Code (the “Code Provisions”)
and the recommended best practices, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the Code Provisions as set
out in the Code during the year ended 31 December 2013, with
the exception of deviation set out below.

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
while all directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

During the year, the non-executive director and two independent
non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
service and one independent non-executive director is not
appointed for a specific term of service. Since each of the
independent non-executive directors is subject to rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company, as such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to serve
the purpose of the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

RARB NS R/KEZLEER - BAEEED
%Eﬁ/ﬁﬁ%()kﬂ‘aﬁxﬁﬁn&xﬁr (ST NETPs
BHE 5 (i) EARRN B 2 B E IR R NERESIE K (iv)
REERFEAQA BB -

4}

BFERERTH

\I/

RIEHE R P RIR TR AIMT S 6Pr 8l 2 R REVRT

AI(TsPRID o BEAEE R ZIRA - 57 RAMEX
(ITRNEX D) AR ZEZFEER  REBEE-F—=
Fr-A=+—HALFERARBERNET TR
2 2 BT RV - M TSP H R BB LER O

BIEFRIZ SFRIESCEAL1E  ENITESAEGE
EESMEERET MAMEEEE2LEAS=FRE
RE—IR o

FARFATESMMBBILIFNTESTZRIER
BEERBIER - AR—RBIIFNTES 2 ZEL
BEERBHR - ARZBARBNAKERZA
Al RBUFRTEEAXBRRBFAS LHER
ERBEEE - Fitt - ARARR A HRIEMIE I
EHTRZ TR EALAGRZBR

27



28

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has adopted a code of
conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard as set out in the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MEETING

Board Composition

The Board of Directors currently comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Yuan Wei, one non-executive director,
namely Mr. Li Xiangjun and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Li Qunsheng, Dr. Huang Chung Hsing,
and Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy. The Board is responsible for the overall
management of the Group. It focuses on directing the corporate
strategies and supervising the business and significant affairs
of the Group while the duties of the daily operation management
are delegated to the management of the Company. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to 17 of this
annual report.

During the year under review, Mr. Chen Hong was the chairman
and Ms. Wang Hui was the chief executive officer of the Company
respectively and their roles are clearly segregated, with a clear
division of their responsibilities complying Code Provision A.2.1
of the Code. Mr. Chen Hong was the chairman whose role is to
provide leadership for the Board and provide the Group with
strategic direction in consultation with the Board in a timely
manner to ensure effectiveness of the Board, whereas Ms. Wang
Hui, the chief executive officer, is responsible for the strategic
planning of its various business units, and day-to-day
management of its operation.
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h{. Chen Hong has resigned as chairman and executive director
the Company with effect from 14 February 2014. Currently
Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code is not complied. But the
Board believes that the Company already has a strong corporate
governance structure in place to ensure effective oversight of
management. The Board will continually review the effectiveness
of the Group's corporate governance structure to assess
whether-any changes are necessary.

Mr. Li Xiangjun was appointed as the non-executive directors of
the Company on 7 December 2012 for a period of three years
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and
GEM Listing Rules.

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
while all directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Currently the non-executive director and two independent non-
executive directors are appointed for a specific term of service
and one independent non-executive director is not appointed
for a specific term of service. Since each of the independent
non-executive directors is subject to rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company, as such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose
of the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code.
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Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly. During the year ended 31 December
2013, there were 19 board meetings and 2 general meetings
held to discuss the overall strategy, the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to approve important matters
such as the annual results, quarterly results, interim results and
dividends, the Group’s businesses and investments, etc. The

EXSEERRRRAE

attendance of each director at the board meetings and general

meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance of

Board Meeting

EXgEHRTEH  REE_TZFf T A=
T—BLEFE  ARRERTIONETEEH M2A
BRERAGINN mEBERRE AEEZEEEMBR
BUMENFREERS  FTEXE  THRENMR
B AREZEBRRESERER - SE=HE
Exged MRRAG ZEEEHEINAT -

Attendance of
General Meeting

BRI K& AT 8%

Executive Director

Mr. Chen Hong
Ms. Wei Jianya
(resigned on 19 November 2013)

Mr. Yuan Wei
(appointed on 19 November 2013)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Li Xiangjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing
Ms. Li Bailing
(appointed on 18 January 2013 and
resigned on 19 November 2013)
Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy
(appointed on 19 November 2013)
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h.e company secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes

all board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for directors’ inspection.

The executive directors and senior management meet regularly
to review company business matters and escalate the matters
to the board meeting for further discussion if necessary. The
Board and the Directors can seek independent professional
advice whenever necessary at the Company’s expenses.
Furthermore, they can have access to the company secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
duly complied with and advising the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

In accordance to the Board’s current practice and Code Provision
A.1.7 of the Code, any material transaction involving a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director will be
considered and dealt with by the Board by a duly convened
Board meeting. It also requires the directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

In Compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company now has three independent non-
executive directors representing half of the Board with one of
them having appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Currently it has
complied with the relevant Rules. Two independent non-
executive directors is appointed for a fixed term of service
whereas one independent non-executive director is not
appointed for a fixed term of service.
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The Company has, through the nomination committee of the
Board, reviewed the independence of, and received an
appointment and annual confirmation of independence from,
each of the independent non-executive directors, and considers
all the independent non-executive directors independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Delegation to Board Committee and
Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for business
development, leadership, management and control of the Group
and is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing, supervising and monitoring the Group’s affairs. It has
established three committees, namely the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. All of the
committees have written terms of reference in accordance with
the Code. More details of these committees are set out in
separate sections of this report.

The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to the
executive directors and chief executive officer (“CEO”) to facilitate
the efficient day to day management of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Board delegates to the remuneration committee
authorities to determine remuneration for executive directors and
members of senior management.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities
of the Group. Directors receive regular updates and
presentations on changes and developments to the Group’s
business and to environments in which the Group operates, as
well as their responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws,
rules and regulations to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.
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Buring the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors
r'.-"i'hartioipated in the continuous professional developments in
relation to regulatory updates, the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors and the business of the Group in the following

manner:

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Hong BRR A
Ms. Wei Jianya (resigned on 19 November 2013) BREX
Mr. Yuan Wei (appointed on 19 November 2013) RELE
Non-Executive Director FHTE
Mr. Li Xiangjun EHEL
Independent Non-Executive Directors BI¥EH
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak REEE
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing HEHE
Ms. Li Bailing (appointed on 18 January 2013 THER

and resigned on 19 November 2013) W=
Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy (appointed on 19 November 2013) FHMK

Training received included:

A attending internal/external briefing/seminar session in relation
to corporate governance; or

B reading materials in relation to regulatory update

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee on 26
November 2001 with written terms of reference for the purpose
of reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting
and internal control procedures in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules. The committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Li Qunsheng
(the chairman of the committee who was appointed on
7 February 2014), Dr. Huang Chung Hsing and Ms. Li Ya Ru
Nancy (appointed on 19 November 2013).
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The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group, to review the audit plan,
audit findings and independence of the auditors of the Company,
to review the Group’s financial information and financial
statements, annual reports, interim reports and quarterly reports,
and to provide advice and recommendation thereon to the
Board.

The Board also delegated certain corporate governance
functions to the audit committee, including the review and
monitoring of (a) the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; (c) the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) the
code of conduct of the Group applicable to employees and
Directors; and (e) the Group’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the audit committee
held 4 meetings to approve the nature and scope of the statutory
audits, and review the annual, interim, quarterly consolidated
financial statements of the Group, and details of the attendance

of each member of the committee are set out as follows:

EVZEGZIERAERRIREEASE !
FRRAZ P M A RR BRI R AT &z%ﬂ?%&#g 2B
REBERARBREENBE L - BEAS BT
BRANTERE - F8R - PHRSARFE @S
Wit MEESRHEE R NER -

EEeNBETEEE aRE

PR LEE@QAEEZERERRK &IEWU :
VTHEEFSRTHEERER  OEFLSRERAER
BN EEEER - o) AEBEETEERE

ERENENRREER () ARERENRESEH
BT EA ReAEEETTRNBERARELEE

SEWE R BT -

HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—BHLLFE  BFZZE
SRRITIREH  MELXEEZ 2 EE RBEL
BERAKREZEE - FTERAVBERER &
REEERNEZ HELEFBEAINWT ¢

Committee Members Attendance

ERZEEENE i FE RO 8%

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak REELEE 3/4

Dr. Huang Chung Hsing EREEHL 4/4

Ms. Li Bailing (appointed on 18 January 2013 ?E;ﬁﬁi (RZZE—=F—A+N\BHEZT- 1/4
and resigned on 19 November 2013) YR —ZE—=F+—A+ILB&T

Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy (appointed on 19 November 2013)

The minutes of the audit committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. The draft and final versions of the minutes
are circulated to all committee members for their comments and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting.

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the audit
committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

The Company’s annual audited results for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 23 March 2005
with major functions of (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policies and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management of the Group; (i) determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management of the Group; and (jii) reviewing and approving the
performance-based remuneration. The remuneration
committee’s terms of reference are generally aligned with the
requirement of Code Provision B.1.2.

The remuneration committee of the Company is currently chaired
by Mr. Yuan Wei (appointed on 14 February 2014). Other
members include Mr. Li Qunsheng (appointed on 7 February
2014) and Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy (appointed on 11 November
2013). The majority of the members of the remuneration
committee are independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, one meeting of the
remuneration committee was held. All members of the
remuneration committee, at the time being, attended the
meeting. The Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management was discussed in the meeting and no
changes on the policy were recommended by the remuneration
committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the nomination committee on
23 March 2012 with major functions of (i) to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re—appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the CEQO.
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The nomination committee of the Company is currently chaired
by Mr. Yuan Wei (appointed on 14 February 2014). Other
members include Mr. Li Qunsheng (appointed on 7 February
2014) and Dr. Huang Chung Hsing. The majority of the members
of the nomination committee are independent non-executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, two meeting of the
nomination committee were held. All members of the nomination
committee, at the time being, attended the meeting to perform
the aforesaid functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the audit service provided by the auditor of
the Group to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
was mutually agreed in view of the scope of services, amounting
to HK$400,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the establishment and
maintenance of an adequate and effective internal control system
to safeguard the Group’ assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, and to protect the interests of shareholders of the
Company (collectively “internal controls”).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
conducted a review, which covered the major control procedures
in areas of financial and operations of the Company on the
internal control system of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND
PROFESSIONAL CODE OF
CONDUCTS

The Group puts high standards on business ethics and
professional conducts expected of all employees. Employees
are briefed regularly on the code of ethics and on the conducts
of keeping confidentiality of the information of business partners
and the Group. Briefings on the code of ethics and on the
conducts are held for new employees during orientation
sessions.

The Group also adopts good employment standards of non-
discrimination policy and fair compensation scheme.
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EINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the directors for preparing the financial
statements and the auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements are set out in the auditor’s report contained
in this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) may be convened by the
Board on a written requisition of any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meeting
of the Company. The EGM shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) of the
Company.

Enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect
of their rights to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

There is no provision for shareholders to propose resolutions at
a general meeting under the Cayman Islands Companies Law.
However, shareholders can follow the above procedure and
request to convene an EGM.
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Procedures for nominating a new director

(i) If a shareholder wish to propose a person (the
“Candidate”) for election as a director of the Company
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a notice at the
Company’s head office at Unit 2610, 26th Floor, Office
Tower, Convention Plaza, No. 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong (Attention to the Board of Directors and the
company secretary) or the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong;

(if) The notice must (i) include the personal information of
the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50 (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules; and (ii) be signed by the shareholder
concerned and signed also by the Candidate indicating
his/her willingness to be elected and consent of
publication of his/her personal information;

(iif) Where the notice is submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election,
the period for lodgment of the notice shall commence
on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting. In any case, the minimum length
of the period during which any notice to be given shall
be at least seven days;

(iv) In order to allow the shareholders sufficient time to receive
and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a director of the Company, shareholders are
encouraged to submit and lodge the notice as early as
practicable.

Articles of Association

There was no change to the Articles of Association to the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2013.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update the latest business development and financial
performance including the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, the publish and posting of notices,
announcements and circulars on the GEM website and the
Company’s website in a timely manner in order to maintain a
high level of transparency, and to ensure there is no selective
disclosure of inside information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B MR

To.the shareholders of
hina E-Learning Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 156, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$86,082,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 and, as
of that date, the Group’s had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of HK$3,444,000 and HK$93,848,000 respectively.
Notwithstanding the cash proceeds of HK$29,952,000 received
by the Group in March 2014, the Group would still require
additional amount of cash flow from operation and/or financing
in the forthcoming year to support the future operation of the
Company, there would be an uncertainty on having sufficient
net cash inflow to support the Group’s ability to continue its
operation as a going concern.
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BRMNERDERE RS AR HH -

REZRNER

WERA ISR Mo - ER &Y BHRERN
BHE T =5+-_A=1+—HILFEELZFERE
86,082,000/ - &k EBEEBHZEZHIEZRDE
BEFBEREBEFES>AN A3, 444,000 T
93,848,000/ 7L - AR BEEBN T —HF = Al
HUR 4 8 sk7E29,952,000/8 7T @ 18 B @K E
MEFEEER /AR EELENEIIRSRER
B AERE BRAZAKREE W BEEERE
ERAFREMAUE BEEBEREERSELE
FEGETHETMY -



Independent Auditor’s Report
A BEBEERE

'‘QUALIFIED OPINION

In'our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,

and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Seto Man Fai
Practising Certificate No.: P05229

Hong Kong
26 March 2014
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Consolidated Income Statement

mEWNER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE

2013 2012
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Continuing operations BEREEL
Revenue Y &5 8 47,066 41,783
Cost of goods sold and HEE mRIEH-RS
services provided Z AR (25,098) (13,194)
Gross profit EF 21,968 28,589
Other income H bl s 9 667 222
Selling expenses SHE FSZ = (118)
Administrative expenses TEAX 12 (34,917) (33,128)
Other expenses H At 5 X 10 (462) (3,268)
Finance costs, net L& R A FRR 11 (9,807) (7,510)
Loss before tax BRBLATE A (22,551) (15,213)
Income tax Frig#i 14 - -
Loss for the year from KEEREEFE
continuing operations rEEKZEIR 12 (22,551) (15,213)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEEE 15
Loss for the year from REFREE KL
discontinued operations WEER BB (63,531) -
Loss for the year AREEZEE (86,082) (15,213)
Loss for the year attributable to: LT AL EEEREEEE :
Owners of the Company RABFBA (96,449) (30,397)
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR A = 10,367 15,184
(86,082) (15,213)
Loss per share BRER 18
From continuing and REFERBKRIE
discontinued operations K L
- Basic — &K (6.53 cents {lll) (2.07 cents L)
— Diluted —8E N/A ~EHR N/A 38 F
From continuing operations REFELEETR
- Basic — &K (2.23 cents {ll) (2.07 cents )
— Diluted —8E N/A ~EHR N/A 738 F
From discontinued operation REDKIEEEET
- Basic N (4.30 cents i) -
— Diluted —8E N/A ~EHR N/A 38 F
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NS
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEWNER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE

2013
—g_=
b HK$’000 HK$’000
3 FET FHEIT
Loss for the year RNEEEE (86,082) (15,213)
Other comprehensive income HEi2mEmkas
Items that may be reclassified R EFHHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz hyIEE -
Reclassification adjustment relating to HERNHETHRDE
available-for-sale financial assets TREEBB
disposed of during the year MEHHEAE 393 -
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AtHEEREELTEE
financial assets - 2,124
Exchange difference arising on translation BRESIINEBEEZIENZHE
of foreign operations 1,489 1,984
Other comprehensive income, Hih2mE W= FOBRTEBH)
net of income tax 1,882 4,108 43
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAEE2HER XA (84,200) (11,105)

Comprehensive income (expense) for the year A~ AT E(EARFE

attributable to: HEME FL)
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIESFS DN (95,228) (26,289)
Non-controlling interests AR = 11,028 15,184

(84,200) (11,108)
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBAR R R

As at 31 December 2018 R = ZE—=F+-_A=+—H

2013

—E—=

HK$’000

TER

HK$'000
TAT

Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Goodwill EES 19 - 68,055
Property, plant and equipment W - BENEE 20 1,165 1,630
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 21 - 249
1,165 69,934
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =BE 23 11 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b FE YRR 24 89,126 79,958
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEER 25 15,101 22,309
104,238 102,267
Assets classified as held for sale DIEABELEEE 16 29,480 -
133,718 102,267
Total assets EERE 134,883 172,201
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables 5 REMEMNIERR 26 48,168 30,950
Financial derivatives SHITETER 31 500 1,476
Bank overdraft RITBEX - 39
Other borrowings H A AR 30 35,483 56,737
Convertible notes G E S 31 52,952 37,814
137,103 127,016
Liabilities directly associated with HAEARELE
assets classified as held for sale EEERRABEzaE 16 59 -
137,162 127,016
Net current liabilities REEEFE (3,444) (24,749)
Total assets less current liabilites ZEERABERRBEE (2,279) 45185
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other borrowing H A AR 30 31,304 -
Convertible notes TR EE 31 60,265 68,024
91,569 68,024
Total liabilities BEARE 228,731 195,040
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2013
—E—=

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHEIT

Net liabilities BEFEE (93,848) (22,839)
Capital and reserves BARGFE

Share capital P& A 28 161,422 735,939

Reserves & (261,026) (762,546)

Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR e 5,756 3,768

Total equity R (93,848) (22,839)

The consolidated financial statement on pages 42 to 156 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 March 2014 and are signed on it behalf by:

FA2EEF16EMNIRA T BREN S —HF= A

“HABEEFSHMAE REETE

REBE -

Yuan Wei
=RiE
Director

EF

Wi FHIES
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Statement of Financial Position

B EEIR L 2R

As at 31 December 2018 R = ZE—=F+-_A=+—H

2013 2012
—Z£2—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T

Assets and liabilities BEEREE

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B NMEE 20 620 39
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZEE 22 = 77,848
Available-for-sale financial assets At EemEE 21 - 249
620 78,136

Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables 5 REMMEWIRR 24 591 16,533
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W FfY /&8 & R 5RIR 22 140,168 136,895
Cash and cash equivalents RehBeEBEER 25 822 44
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELEERE 16 29,952 -
171,533 153,472
Total assets EEH#E 172,153 231,608
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENERR 26 5,356 9,052
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS BT B 2 Bl 3k08 22 160 70
Bank overdraft RITBEX - 39
Financial derivative EROUTETE 31 500 1,476
Other borrowings H At {8 5K 30 35,483 56,737
Convertible notes G E S 31 52,952 37,814
94,451 105,188
Net current assets RBEEFE 77,082 48,284
Total assets less current liabilites BEZAEBERREE G 77,702 126,420

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other borrowing H A fE sk 30 31,304 -
Convertible notes AR R I& 31 60,265 68,024
91,569 68,024
Total liabilities EEAE 186,020 173,212
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE) EEZEHE (13,867) 58,396
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2013
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T T
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital [N 28 161,422 735,939
Reserves & 29 (175,289) (677,543)
Total equity ol (13,867) 58,396
Yuan Wei
=EE
Director
e
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TERREBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE

48

F o
Available-
for-sale
Convertible  financial
Share-based  Exchange notes assets  PRC staff Non-
Share Share  payment fluctuation equity  valuation award fund Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
At AEAL
UR%f  EXR® TRREE SREE  #BES
REE il R RERE HERE R 2R At FEREZ  EHAT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
) TATL TETL BT TERL TERL BT BT ThL
(Note 28) (N
(ftsk28)
At1 January 2012 RZF-ZE-F-B 73,17 171,329 14,494 9,166 8,041 (2,517) - (951,166) (18,482) 3,768 (14,714)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE by - - - - - - - (30,397) (30,397) 15,184 (15,213)
Other comprehensive income REEEMEE
for the year e - - - 1,984 - 2,124 - - 4,108 - 4,108
Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - 1,984 - 2,124 - (30,397)  (26,289) 15,184 (11,105)
Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (15,184) (15,184)
Issue of convertible notes - - - - 10,909 - - - 10,909 - 10,909
Issue of shares by conversion RUAREE)
of convertible notes BRMBIRG 3,768 5,321 - - (486) - - - 8,603 - 8,603
Redemption of convertible notes EE AR - - - - (732 - - - (732 - (732)
Being settlement of convertble notes B AT AR - - - - (616) - - - (616) = (616)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF
TZA=t-R 735,939 176,650 14,494 11,150 17,116 (393) - (981,563  (26,607) 3,768 (22,839)
(Loss) profit for the year - - - - - - - (96,449) (96,449) 10,367 (86,082)
Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 828 - 393 - - 1,221 661 1,882
Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - - 828 - 393 - (96,449) (95,228) 11,028 (84,200)
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interest - - - - - - - - - (9,040) (9,040)
Issue of convertible notes - - - - 73 - - - 73 - 73
Issue of employee share option - - 6,224 - - - - - 6,224 - 6,224
Issue of shares by conversion
of convertible notes ] 14,234 - - - - - - - 14,234 - 14,234
Redemption of convertible notes TARER - - - - (905) - - 209 (696) - (696)
Transfer of share option reserve pERERER
upon the forfeiture of share option {% - - (1519) - - - - 1519 - - -
Transfer to discontinued operations = - - - (403) - - - 403 - - -
Transfer to PRC staff award fund reserve
- - - - - - 2,396 - 2,396 - 2,396
Capital Reorganisation (588,751)  (176,650) - - - - - 765,401 - - -
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZE
tZA=1-H 161,422 - 19,199 11,575 16,284 - 2,396 (310,480)  (99,604) 5,756 (93,848)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE

Cash flow from operating activities

REXBEEZHERE

2013
—E—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TAT

Loss before tax BRELRIEE

From continuing operations REFELEER (22,551) (15,213)

From discontinued operations REDKRIEEEHER (63,531) -
Adjustments for: AN &I A%
Finance cost, net B E R AN F R 9,807 7,510
Depreciation e 1,689 2,239
Interest income B A 43 (62)
Share-based payment expense LA R 32 4+ 5728 Bl 32 6,224 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales H € A it HH & & @ & &

financial assets 2 E518 2 2,532
Loss on redemption of EO AR ER

convertible notes Z B8 209 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - W5

plant and equipment N5 2 W= (241) -
Impairment losses on trade and 5 kE A EWIRR

other receivables B E B 11,116 4,902
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 56,008 -
Impairment gain recognized in B PE T SO FE R

respect of payables EOVERER € = (137)
PRC staff award fund FERE THEEES 2,396 -
Operating cash flows before EEESREAREER

movements in working capital ZHERE 1,171 1,771
Increase in inventories FEEM (11) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 REMEWIRR

other receivables (g (23,868) 3,269
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 REMERNERR

other payables G 17,277 (3,328)
Increase in borrowings f& FRHE N 29,759 5,155
Cash generated from rEEKE FTRA) RS

(used in) operations 24,328 6,867
Overseas taxes paid EAEINEIE = (126)
Net cash generated from REXKE TR REFEE

(used in) operating activities 24,328 6,741
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED -

n‘l_\ é IE! % \;}2& % %

For the year ended 31 December 2013 H = —Z —

Cash flow from investing activities REEBEELE2RERE

Payment of property,

TEAKHEEERRAR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

YR - BB R

=F+ZA=+—RHIEFE

2013

—E—=

HK$’000
TERT

2012

HK$’000
T

plant and equipment S 2 A (1,287) (12)
Proceed from disposal of property, — HE¥E - BE M EE

plant and equipment Z B IE 304 -
Proceed from available-for-sale AHHESREE

financial assets pATIEES /SL 247 3,331
Interest received B F B 43 62
Payment for available-for-sale BE AL tb' k2 rﬂﬁ?

financial assets S A2 5 - (201)
Dividends paid to non-controlling M — A Bﬁ%“ﬂz

interest of a subsidiary JEERER KRB (9,040) -
Net cash (used in) generated BEEE (FrA)

from investing activities FIBRE&FEE (9,733) 3,180
Financing activities RMEEE
Redemption of convertible notes EE TR RE 9,712 (2,537)
Net cash used in financing

activities METBHMARSFE 9,712 (2,537)
Net increase in cash HeRBESEEER

and cash equivalents IS EE 4,883 7,384
Cash and cash equivalents FHNzReREASEEEE

at the beginning of the year 22,309 19,459
Effect of foreign exchange EXEFHH o &

rate changes 1,758 (4,534)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2BEERBASZEEER 28,950 22,309

at the end of the year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

-

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE

4
:

Expressed in HK$) (JA7E T3 7R)

GENERAL

China E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10 July 2001. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section
of “Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF GOING
CONCERN BASIS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$3,444,000 and HK$93,848,000
respectively as at 31 December 2013 and incurred a net
loss of HK$86,082,000 for the year then ended. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group is
able to maintain itself as a going concern in the coming
year by taking into consideration the arrangements which
include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. The directors of the Company will continue to
reduce overheads and costs, and are exploring
opportunities for existing business with an aim to
attain profitable operations with positive cash
flows;

1.

—REHR

PEERHEREERAR ([ARF]) RN
—EE-FLATRERSHERERSR
ERAE (RERD MKz XA RAR L
Bl ARBIBRNEBTEHARZAAERAT
(TP ) BIERAR (TRIFAR]) £ -

ARRGEMPEER TR EME 2 U &
RERIARER] —& -

RAEVMBERRAETIE BKABEHRE
S FRIBEBEHNEAAEREIZ T
2 -

RRBZEBRBGA/REZR - HEXZWE
RAZ EBEBEN A M RRME22 -

RABEKEEE

®

m (& FRE N B EFRE D BIAY A&3,444,000
7T 593,848,000 TA R EEZ B ILFE
4 B 18 F 5886,082,000/8 7 @ 4R A BT 5 R
REORBBECEEEMRR - AARESR
B EEFEEETRR)UTSEEAZ
T AEBEERNREESF NG IERFE

e
EEER

EAKER-F-=4+-A=+-BZ
\tijjg

1. ARPEFHEEREEEER R
A WERRRBEFEHERERE -
UERGENBELEREREZE

%
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

2. ADOPTION OF GOING
CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

2. The proposal to implement capital reorganization
by way of capital reduction and sub-division of
unissued shares of the Company was approved
in an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company in February 2013 and became effective
in July 2018.

The capital reorganization provides the Company
more flexibility to the market situations in pricing
future capital raising exercises and to issue shares
to the prevailing market price timely without going
through various statutory requirements. In
addition, the directors of the Company proposed
the refreshment of the existing general mandate
at the extraordinary general meeting to be held
on 28 March 2014. The financial flexibility provided
by the refreshment of existing general mandate
(upon approval) would widen the sources of funds
of the Company;

3. In October 2013, the Company decided to
dispose of Everjoy Technology Development
Corporation and Everjoy International Media
Corporation (“Everjoy”) and transfer of deposit on
improving the online ticketing system at the
consideration which was determined based on the
fair values of Everjoy and online ticketing system
assessed by the independent professional valuer.
In February 2014, the valuer issued the reports
and the consideration for the disposal of Everjoy
and transfer of online ticketing system has been
fixed at RMB20,600,000 and RMB2,800,000
respectively. The disposal and transfer
consideration was paid to the Company in March
2014,

4. As the Bank of Shanghai has provided the Group
a line of credit of RMB100,000,000 in August
2012, the directors of the Company will consider
utilizing this credit facility when necessary.

Based on the aforesaid measures, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
these consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The consolidated financial statements do
not include any adjustments relating to the carrying
amount and reclassification of assets and liabilities that
might be necessary should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern.

2.

RAEESEEE &

2. AR B A BRI S K S AR B R 3R
T 2 T A B R AEEZEZR
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

— The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HAKS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK (IFRIC) - INT 20

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the

current year has had no material impact on the Group’s

financial performance and positions for the current and

prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

3.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

5 4@
(T

S o
If¥ 38
2

e

\
,—
—
 I—
~

o &

)n:nw
4 o
&

4

&
%

WA - AEEEREAAT B st
DB 2 HE RIS BB R

ay -

BN EREEA BN EREER
AN —ETNEFE
o L
ZEENE
BEM RS £ RE-HiEER
FTRZBEAR EERSBERE
BRMBRELEIEI0R - KEVBERE -
BAMBRESER HEZHREE
FURRBANBRS REfhE e

RERIE125% 2 BRI AR

s BEES

BRVBRELERFEI0% HAPBERER

BERPBREENFE 1R HEZH

BRMBREERF 12 HERNEMER

ZKEm

BERPBREELERNF 13 ATETE

EAR G REAF19% B &7
(R=T——FEEF)

ER G ERIF 275 BUMBREK
(R=F——F&ER])

BB G ERIF 285 REFERE R
(R=T——F&EE) RELEZRE

BERAGEAS IR EHEMEERE
ZEFTA JHH

ER (ERMBHRERE BERBREERR
Z8E) -REF20% Z R

RAFERAT REETBRBMBREE
A EUAREAREEMBEFE MR
BEMRRE, Rz EHEVHEREMBEE
ERERTE -

53



54

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

4.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities’

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above
new standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards will not result in a significant impact
on the results and financial position of the Group.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial assets which have been measured at
fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer
measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it
shall not be remeasured until it is finally settled within
equity.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquire over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment,
in an associate or joint venture, the investment or the
portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the
investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified
as held for sale. Any retained portion of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture that has not been classified
as held for sale continues to be accounted for using the
equity method. The Group discontinues the use of the
equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal
results in the Group losing significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for
any retained interest in the associate or joint venture in
accordance with HKAS 39 unless the retained interest
continues to be an associate or a joint venture, in which
case the Group uses the equity method (see the
accounting policy regarding investments in associates
or joint ventures above).

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fiar value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods and services, or for
administrative purpose are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:
Leasehold improvements  The shorter of the lease
terms or 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
trade and other receivables, inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

5.

FESFTEEX ®

M- BMERSKRE @

W= - BEEREEB NRED Z A A
FHAR - BIZEB 2 XAAREEEERT
R#AEIE  MEFDEORITE - Rk
BE  AEAFHARTETEZINEHMIK
FERETRTRAR (WER) -

WE  BELEREEE RS ERZEMNE
REpDR B ERHARERKHEZRB
TEHRAREEN b BUBER - REE
BUBRER 2 FER e R AR 2 B &R
2 W B R IE R E EHE G RF
BEMREEZERE -

FERMEERE

HELRETR @ AFEHEE (BHMEM
FEWRRR - FEREREERIN EITFEM
EREE AR/ EENATKREEHE - &
ENAKREESAAEESR S EL BN
EREEEEAFERLERAMERHEK
=BE/E  WHEREEFLETE  HEHE
RIMBRESRARERE - FLHBERT - AT
CeMEZEEMBRSELEMERE -




p—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.

Financial asset
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group within the scope of HKAS
39 are classified as loans and receivables and available—
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
financial assets not at fair value through profit or not,
directly attributable transaction costs.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial asset (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group'’s financial assets include trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in interest income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial asset (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale assets valuation reserve
until the assets is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement in
other operating expenses and removed from the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial asset (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near
term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in
the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans and
receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to
hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is
permitted only when the entity has the ability and intent
to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for—
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when (i) the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired; or (ii) the Group has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is @ measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first—
out basis and comprises, comprises costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of HKAS
39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortised costs,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, receipt in advance, accruals and derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at amotised cost

After initial recognition, financial assets at amotised cost
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
the liability, conversion option and early redemption option
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, both the liability and early redemption
option components are measured at fair value. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of
the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability and early redemption option components
respectively, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included
in equity (convertible notes equity reserve).
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in consolidated income statement.

The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes equity reserve
until the embedded conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve
will be released to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated income statement upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and amortised over
the period of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positions), without
any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5, FEETBER@®
POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions BiE
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present EAREEBREEHMEARITEERAS
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable BrR e FERITZE M AIEREBE - B
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. LER RS EBRBITRITEAMEREZ
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of REGETE U RBITERZRBRET
consideration required to settle the present obligation at AR - W BLBITRITEEMETS
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the ZHEeREFE  WEREEABHREZNM
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where ECHEEMMFEEAX) o

a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligations, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flow (where the effect is

material).

Revenue recognition O

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the IR ARG F 28 Pl gEm A ARS8 B aE ] 52
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the STEABWARIE T EERER

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

0) Tuition revenue from educational programs is (i) HERBEZ WAL REELL IR ENE
recognised on a time-proportion basis, using the FOAN AR BB RE 2 BN #ER -

straight-line method, over the duration of the
relevant educational programs.

(ii) Revenue from sales of educational materials and (ii) HEMPRRERZIEEWRAREEE
products is recognised when the products are mREHEREBIERRER -

delivered and title has passed to customers.

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using (i)  FBEWARERTEEAERR AR
the effective interest method. e
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised as
an expense in the consolidated income statement
as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service payments are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision will be made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service payments as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Share-based payments
The Group operates equity-settled share-based

compensation scheme (“Scheme”) to remunerate
its employees.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For share options granted under the Scheme, the
fair value of the employees’ services rendered in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense immediately and credited to the
share-based payment reserve under equity. Where
the employees are required to meet vesting
conditions before they become entitled to the
options, the Group recognises the fair value of
the options granted over the vesting periods. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated income statement, and
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve.

Upon exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded
by the Company in the share premium account.
The equity amount is recognised in the share—
based payment reserve until the option is
exercised when it is transferred to the share
premium account if the options lapse unexercised,
the related share-based payment reserve is
transferred directly to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

5.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flow, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (i) has joint control
over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

5.
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(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

TE-=ZHF+-A=+—-HIFE
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 6. BAESFTTHE R

JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

REAREY BRI AHEEENHEHR
EERERA X  BERABZ®RES
BEARBBEZREZHE - A RERE -
Am - BEZEBRREEF 2 TABREES
BYARAHARTXIFEZEELRER
EEETEAFBZER

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
Judgments FI B

RIERREKEE S HEBEFR - Ry ki
FHESN - BEEEHUTHENBREFTE
MAZBHEABEATE 6 -

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

(Continued)
Judgments (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual value. The
Company assesses annually the residual value and the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and if
the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will affect the
depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates
change.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability and age
of the trade and other receivables. Appropriate
impairment for estimated irrecoverable amounts is
recognised in the consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

6.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables
(Continued)

In determining whether impairment on trade and other
receivables is required, the Company takes into
consideration the current creditworthiness, the past
collection history, age status and likelihood of collection.
Specific allowance is only made for receivables that are
unlikely to be collected and is recognised on the
difference between the estimated future cash flow
expected to receive of which discounted by using the
original effective interest rate and its carrying value. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Company
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional impairment may be
required.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was calculated
using the Black-Scholes valuation model/Trinomial Option
Pricing Model which requires the management’s
estimates and assumptions on significant calculation
inputs, including the estimated life of share options
granted, the volatility of share price and expected
dividend yield. Change in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill needs impairment requires
an estimation of the value is use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flow is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill
is nil (2012: HK$68,055,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Business segments

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance.

The Group is currently having one continuing operating
segment on a single business in a single geographical
location, which is the provision of an internet platform
for the facilitation of education program in Chinese
medicine and other advisory and training programs in
the PRC, and all the assets are substantially located in
the PRC. Accordingly, there is only one single reportable
segment of the Group which is regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker.

Information about a major customer
No transactions with a single external customer amount

to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE ;’
_.-"

(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

o
8. REVENUE 8. WA
Continuing operations FERKEEK / |
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the years is as AEERFAZEEREITANR : ‘\
follows:

2013 2012
—E—= —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&T FABTT
Tuition fee revenue HEREZ WA 47,066 41,685
Sales of educational products HEEMHEE - 98
47,066 41,783
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfttlr A
Continuing operations FEREEK

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Gain on disposal of property, LEWE  BEK
plant and equipment Bl P& 241 -
Interest income FEWA 43 62
Rental income HERA - 109
Sundry income MIEMA 383 51

667 222




11.

OTHER EXPENSES

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

10. Httfx%

Continuing operations FERKEEK
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Donations B 251 736
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HENHRLESREE ZEIE
financial assets 2 2,532
Loss on redemption of convertible notes ER ;R EE - &8 209 -
462 3,268
FINANCE COSTS, NET 11. BB FE
Continuing operations FEREER

Interest expenses on financial liabilities

2013

—g-=

HK$’000
TR

REHERAHEZERAE

2012
—E——F
HK$’000
T

measured at amortised cost ZHRERX 12,029 7,667
Fair value changes on financial derivative EMTETEZ A TFEES) (2,222) (157)
9,807 7,510
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE
(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM 12. AFERBFELEERZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B8

2013 2012
—E—= —EF—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

Loss before tax has been arrived at after BELATEEE 1k
charging: T5%E

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & 8 B 7N (BIEE EH4)

- basic salaries and allowances — BN MER 9,988 11,972

— contributions to defined contribution plans ~ — FREMEFRETEI 2 3% 873 918

— Other — Hitp 31 865

— Share-based payment expense — AR RIEMA X 6,224 -
Total staff costs IR B AR 17,116 13,755

88 Auditors’ remuneration: ZEET € -

— Audit service — ZERT 425 260

- Non-audit service — FEREIRTS - 3
Professional fee HEEBH 5,617 6,532
Depreciation of property, plant W BERZBZITE

and equipment

— included in cost of sales — BIERBEEKAA - 802

—included in selling expenses — BEREERZA - 7

— included in administrative expenses — BERTEESA 1,689 1,430
Total depreciation of property, Y BEREETERRE

plant and equipment 1,689 2,239
Impairment losses on other receivables Hth JE W RIE R B E 18 - 4,902
Payments under operating lease for TH REFEAEELD

land and buildings ERN NEN 3,325 2,838
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“"“f3. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EENEEME
EMOLUMENTS
a. Directors’ emoluments a. E=EMS

Salaries,

allowances
and benefits Performance
related

honuses Total

RERBRA it

Retirement

Share-based
payment

NREA5E

in kind scheme

Fees &4 2H
W  RENAE

contributions

Eirat B

89

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR THR Tin Tin Tin
For the year ended BE-E-=F
31 December 2013 TZA=T-ALEE
Executive Directors unEs
Mr. Chen Hong (note | BREE (h) - 1,040 - 472 - 1,512
Ms. Wel Jianya (note i Gt (i) - 531 - - - 531
Mr. Yuan Wei (note i) RERE (ki) - 70 - 472 - 542
Non-Executive Directors FUTES
M. Li Xlangjun (note ) ZRELE (i) 107 300 - - - 407
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES
Directors
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing ERART 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak David ~ SREERA (B
(note v) 100 - - - - 100
Ms. Li Baling (note vi FEEZL (Widv) 83 - - - - 83
Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy (note vii) 2 Hee st £ (¥ il 12 - - - - 12
362 1,94 - 944 - 3,241
Salaries,
allowances
and bengfits Retirement Performance
in kind scheme  Share-based related
Fees £ & contributions t bonuse
Be RINGTEIRR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL BT BT
For the year ended BE_E5-CF
31 December 2012 TZA=t-ALEE
Executive Directors HTEES
Mr. Chen Hong REkk - 1,000 - - - 1,000
Ms. Wei Jianya ERGaT - 600 - - - 600
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES
Directors
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak David 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Wu Tao (note viii 80 - - - - 80

240 1,600 - - - 1,840
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For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EEREEME »

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

920

a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEMe @
Notes: B 5T
(i) Mr. Chen Hong was resigned on 14 February 0] BAREENR_T—MF_F+MHH
2014, BH(E -
(ii) Ms. Wei Jianya was resigned on 19 November (ii) ERDZTHR_T—=F+—A+
2013. JLEBHE o
(iii) Mr. Yuan Wei was appointed on 19 November (iii) REBEER_ZE—=F+—A+NI
2018. HEZRE -
(iv) Mr. Li Xiangjun was appointed on 7 December (iv) EHMERER_T——_F+=-At
2012. HEZRE -
(v) Ms. Cheung Wai Tak was resigned on 7 (v) REBAENR_ZF—MNE_A+H
February 2014. BHT
(vi) Ms. Li Bailing was appointed on 18 January (vi) THELLIHR_Z—=F—A+AN
2013 and resigned on 19 November 2013. AEZAUERR-_Z—=F1+—A8
BB -
(vii) Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy was appointed on (vii) FHMZTN T —=F+—A+
19 November 2013. NBEZE -
(vii)  Mr. Wu Tao was resigned on 19 October 2012. (ii)  RBEER-Z—-F+AT+IAE
BT -

In 2013, the amounts of share-based payments
were measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

None of the directors of the Company waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the
Company and no incentive payment for joining the
Company or compensation for loss of office was
paid or payable to any director of the Company
during the two years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012.

R -=F PRINEERE
B 75 R M FES P B AR S (B A R LA B 32
NXFzEABETE -

HE-_ZT—=FR-_F——-F+=A
= t—HIMEFE  MERQRE
ERESRERETMHAAR RN
ZBE - TMESRIMARRA T L SE
- o] 828 SR I8 ok ph BB S A S e
HWETFARREMNES -
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~43. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EXRESM 2 =
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Five highest paid individuals b. EUGZSHATL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments rEERAURESFATEBEART =
in the Group, three (2012: two) were directors of H(CE—ZF MBES  HE2
the Company, whose remunerations are included HNR LSRR - IS TESmE (2
in the disclosures above. The remunerations of E-_F ZB)ATZEHHOAT

the remaining two (2012: three) individuals were

as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHE T
Salaries allowances and benefits e EMEEDHS
in kind 1,592 1,906
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B3R 15 14
Share-based payment VARR S2 A< 0B - -
1,607 1,920
Their remunerations were within the following WEZHMER TINEEA
band:

Number of individuals

A

2013 2012

—_E—= —E——4F

HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T
1,500,000/ 7T = -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE - T —=F +-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

14. INCOME TAX (RELATING TO
CONTINUING OPERATIONS)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided for as the Group did not
generate any taxable profits in Hong Kong (2012: nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
tax at 25% (2012: 25%). Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated income statement as

follows:

14. gg)«%ﬁ (ERFEREER

HE-_ZT-—=F+_"_A=+—HIEFE &

O SR 0 1 6 2 T 1)«
M AR B R BRI (St

#£) o

BB A Al J51R25% (ZF— —4F : 25%)
R RGP B ZERER - Htb el AR
EEZHRBRESEREER ZBITHE

st
= o
Ea

REFZHHERIEFE Wt R ZBRE AR Y
RN -

2013
—E—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Loss before tax bR B AT ES 1B
(from continuing operations) CREBEBEGLER) (22,551) (15,213)
Tax at respective applicable tax rates BHRBEARETE 2BIE (3,082) (8,825)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR MBS 2 B &
for tax purposes 12,616 1,595
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBUA Z B i5 5 &
tax purposes (11,766) 6,933
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEEE G E 2,873 297
Utilisation of tax losses previously FAARGERBIEER
not recognised (641) -

Income tax for the year KEEWFTE
(relating to continuing operations) (BB

A
EH5HER) - -
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15. ERLEREER

\ On 31 October 2013, the Company entered into the an RZZE—=F+A=+—H  ARBFIZ—

\ agreement to dispose of Everjoy Technology s S K LERHT 2R G A R Bk 226
Development Corporation and Everjoy International Media BREEBRAT (KEREBEHBEBER)
Corporation which carried out all the Group's ticketing AREEARE ETEBZHENZES - HER
operations, and transfer of deposit on improving the ZE-MF=A+ZATK - REEBBL
Online Ticketing System. The disposal was completed EREHRIERE - FAlt - CHREERER
on 12 March 2014. The carrying amounts exceed the B R HE A E U RIE o

net proceeds of sale and accordingly, impairment losses

of goodwill and other receivables were recognised.

2013 2012
—_E—= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T T
Loss for the year from AEERBEKIE
discontinued operations REEKRZEEB
Revenue WA 3,593 -
Profit before tax B A% AT A 3,593 -
Loss on remeasurement to fair values EFHEQAFERBEENRAZ
less costs to sell B8
— impairment losses on goodwill —EREEE (56,008) -
— Impairment losses on other receivables — H At fE W R IE R E E 18 (11,116) -
Loss for the year from RAFEEREERIEREES
discontinued operations ) 3! (63,531) -

Cash flows from discontinued operations HH B & IE & EHK
ZEERE

Net cash inflows from operating activites K& EFELEZRESTE/FEE 3,593 -

Net cash inflows HEeREFR 3,593 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE - T —=F +-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

16. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD

17.

16. 7EARFFHEEE

FOR SALE
(@) The Group (@ ZA&£H
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHIT
Goodwill (see note 19(v)) P2 (RMEE19(Vv) 12,047 -
Other receivables H 4th JE k08 3,584 -
Cash and cash equivalents HehReFERE 13,849 -
Assets classified as held for sale DIEARBELHEEE 29,480 -
Other payables H b B 5RI8 59 -
Liabilities directly associated with MO ARIELE
assets classified as held for sale CEEE%NABECAE 59 -

(b)

The deposit on Online Ticketing System has been
classified and accounted for at 31 December 2013
as disposal group held for sale and was fully
impaired for the year then ended (see note 15).

The Company

The investments in subsidiaries of Everjoy
Technology Development Corporation and Everjoy
International Media Corporation was disposed on
12 March 2014, the investments cost of those
subsidiaries was classified as Assets classified as
held for sale.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31

December 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

R-EB—=F+"_HA=+—H &*t
EBERNESE DB RARIIER
EHEZHEER ERNBEZB LS
EEABRE (RHFE5) »

(b) ARF

REBARKEHRERARA AR
NEBRERERADZREDR =
T-MEZ AL RSB
RRZRARAD BB E R
B o

iz 2

BE " Z—=F+_"A=1t—HILFETE
IR SR A E RIS - P& BIRR R
BRKMNEMRE(ZTE—ZF : &) o

17.
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LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued
operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$96,449,000 (2012:
HK$30,397,000), and based on the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year of
approximately 1,476,858,000 ordinary shares
(2012:1,469,511,000 ordinary shares), as adjusted to
reflect the shares by conversion of convertible notes
during the year.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
operations is based on loss for the year from continuing
operations attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$32,918,000 (2012: HK$30,397,000),
and based on the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year of approximately 1,476,858,000
ordinary shares (2012: 1,469,511,000 ordinary shares),
as adjusted to reflect the shares by conversion of
convertible notes during the year.

From discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share from
discontinued operations is based on loss for the year
from discontinued operations attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$63,531,000 (2012:
Nil), and based on the weighted average number of
shares in issue during the year of approximately
1,476,858,000 ordinary shares (2012: 1,469,511,000
ordinary shares), as adjusted to reflect the shares by
conversion of convertible notes during the year.

No diluted loss per share has been presented for the
years of 2013 and 2012 as the share options and
convertible notes outstanding have anti-dilutive effects
on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

18. BREE

REFERCRIEEEERR

SREABEDBREAFTEAQNRZEAR
EEE 496,449,000 L (Z T ——%F :
30,397,000/ 7T) + LA R AL TR ARG N E
TR EREEIRMmEITRD 2 FRBE BT
f& 17 N F 8 B 491,476,858,000/% L 38 J%
ZT— 4 :1,469,511,0000% & @A) &t

REFBECERY

REFELSE LN IRERNEERIEASF
EARNEFFE ARG KRB FELE EBREE
#9382,918,000/8 7T (=& — =4 : 30,397,000
BT - A RASTAEE D R A E A AR E R
BRI M BITIRG 2 FAE BTG I
2B #91,476,858,000f8 LA (=T ——4F :
1,469,511,0000% L @A%) 7 & ©

RECKIEREXEK

REBRIHEEEBNERENEEIRE
REFARNBFBEAEBLREDKRILEEE
R BB 463,531,000 (Z T — —4F :
) - DARSAR R F AR R RS E
BRI TRR () 2 F N E TR I T
# B #1,476,858,000l L@ (== —=
F 1 1,469,511,0000% L @A) 51 & -

E AT 2 BB R TR BB Y25
ZERARNEECHBEEREERR - L
B|EHN T —=FN T —FrEREE
518 o
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(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
The Group
REE
HK$’000
FEIT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2012 (Notes i, i & iii) RZZT——F—H—8 (K&, ik ii) 679,104

Acquisition of a subsidiary — Everjoy International Y& — B & A &
Media Corporation (Note iv) — KEEBREERR A (K Tiv) 51,409
Acquisition of a subsidiary — Everjoy Technology Y88 — 1B B 2 &)

96

Development Corporation (Note iv) — KERFER AR AT (FzEiv) 16,646
At 31 December 2012 RZZE-——F+-—A=+—H 747,159
Transfer to Assets classified EEDBARELEEE Mty

as held for sale (Note v) (68,055)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-"A=+—H 679,104
Accumulated impairment losses A REESE
As at 1 January 2012 and RZE——F—HA—HK

31 December 2012 —E——H+-_A=+—H 679,104
Impairment losses recognised during the year FARRREESR 56,008
Transfer to Assets classified BEESHEARELHSEEE Wity

as held for sale (Note v) (56,008)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+-A=+—H 679,104
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=f+=-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2012 RZZE-——F+-A=+—H 68,005




o

Note:

9. GOO DWILL (Continued)

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries New Beida
Business Study Net Group Limited is HK$647,598,000
on 27 February 2008.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries, IIN Medical
(BVI) Group Limited (“IIN Medical (BVI)”) and its
subsidiaries on 23 April 2009.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of non-controlling interests
of Hunan IIN Medical Network Technology Development
Company Limited, a subsidiary of IIN Medical (BVI), in
May 2009.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of ii and iii is
HK$31,506,000.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries, Everjoy
International Media Corporation (“El”) and Everjoy
Technology Development Corporation (“ET”) is
HK$68,055,000 on 20 December 2012.

On 31 October 2013, the Company entered into an
agreement to dispose of El and ET. The disposal was
completed on 12 March 2014, the goodwill and
accumulated impairment losses of ET and El was
transfer to Assets classified as held for sale accordingly.

i

ﬁu_u,:
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19. & »

AMEDR_FTNF A=+ HKEH
BoRHMIEABMEREEERAREE
% - R647,5698,000/8 7T °

BMEDR-_ZETAFHA-+=BKEM
BATEAREBVVERAR LT ([EE
BEBV))) REMNBARRKEL

EETIR
BV)Z BT
FEER AR

RZEENFRARBEEE
— B R AR X
2R RREL

P Ty AR BRI RIiBFE 4 - 531,506,000
BT °

BMEDR-_ZE——F+=-A=1+B8KEKH
BAR - KERAREEERAE ([KEH
B ROKERI R EE AR AR (KR
) BEE - /A68,055,000/5 T °

R=F-=H+A=+—B  ARTTT
—IE S Sk B B R o HE
RZE—NF=A+ZBFK Bt - Xk
LRI FOKSBEBR B R REREEE
BENHEARBELELE -




98

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

19. GOODWILL (continuea)
Impairment testing of goodwill

i.

ii.

Acquisition of New Beida Business Study
Net Group Limited (“New Beida”)

As at the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group had performed an impairment testing of
goodwill arose on acquisition of New Beida with
reference to a valuation carried out by LCH (Asia—
Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), an
independent qualified valuer. As New Beida
sustained a negative cash flow for the year ended
31 December 2009 and such position was
expected to continue in the foreseeable future,
the directors of the Company were of the opinion
that the income approach was inappropriate to
reflect the value of New Beida as at 31 December
2009. The asset-based approach had been
adopted for the valuation for the year ended 31
December 2009, as opposed to the valuation
carried out by LCH for the year ended 31
December 2008 where the income approach was
adopted. Based on the business valuation, the
Group had recognised an impairment loss of
HK$326,115,000 in relation to goodwill arose on
acquisition of New Beida for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: HK$321,483,000). As
a result, the goodwill arose on acquisition of New
Beida was identified to be fully impaired.

Acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI)

As at the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group has performed an impairment testing of
goodwill arose on acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI
) with reference to a valuation carried out by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, based on cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years with a discount
rate of 17.83%. The directors of the Company
were of the opinion, based on the business
valuation, that there the Group had recognised
an impairment loss of HK$31,506,000 in relation
to goodwill arose from the acquisition of IIN
Medical (BVI) as at 31 December 2010. As a result,
the goodwill of HK$31,506,000 on acquisition of
[IN Medical (BVI) was identified to be fully impaired.

19. BE »
2R E Al

i.

ii.

W 58 #7 4k K 5 22 49 55 B R 22 B
([FFaL X))

BE_ZENFT_A=1+—HILSE
[§ - REBREB LG ERGEERMF
BITRERMAR AT ([F8TT]) FTIE
ZAHE - ETAWEIT LR EE RS
ﬁmﬁ@%ﬁom#%kﬁ#@

ENF+ZA=1+— Ei@ﬁﬁf
ﬁ BREeRE - MK ATBIR A
BARRMAIFE  ARBIEERE -
WAETEE RMIFTIEARARZZEEAN,
F+-AZ+—HZEE -EEREE
EERMEREE_EENF T A
=t+t—HIEFEZHEERE  mAE
TARBE-_EEN\GF+=-A=1+—
B IEFERAMAEEITEE - gm
FlERGHE  AEEREBEZZT
h$+:ﬂz+f5¢$§ﬁwﬁ%
EUEES L AMEEmE 2 RERIE
326,115,000 L (ZEZE )\ F
321,483,000/ 7T) © FH It + FHUEEHT
IEAMELEZBECRBER SR
{Eo

W f5 B &1L & #(BVI)

HE-_T-TF+-_A=+—HIF
E-K%lﬁw¢ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@ aE
oz (418 - B E U B AL EE BV M
EEZHBETRENS - BEHEE
TIRBR S AR A FVRIEE (BHR
R17.83%) METZHE SR EFERE

T ARRIEERE - RIBZEBR
B AEBERR=_Z—ZF+=A
=+ —HEAKEBEZEBV)mEL
Z BRI EEE31,506,000%
JC o EE - EUHE BIRT B B (BVI) T =
A 7 31,506,000 TE R BESR
HURE °
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f-"\]9. GOODWILL (continued)

iii.

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continueq)

Acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI) (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined on the basis of value-in-use
calculation. The key factors for the value-in-use
calculation are discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes in revenue and direct costs.
Capital Asset Pricing Model has been adopted to
estimate the discount rate by using market data
of other companies with business similar to 1IN
Medical (BVI). The growth rate is based on the
historical Consumer Price Index of the PRC.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based
on past performance of IIN Medical (BVI) and
management’s expectation of the market
development.

Acquisition of Everjoy International and
Everjoy Technology

On 31 October 2013, the Company entered into
an agreement to dispose of Everjoy International
and Everjoy Technology. The disposal was
completed on 12 March 2014. The carrying
amounts exceed the net proceeds of sale and
accordingly, impairment losses of goodwill
amounted of approximately HK$56,008,000 were
recognised. The goodwill and accumulated
impairment losses of Everjoy International and
Everjoy Technology was transferred to assets
classified as held for sale.
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19. & »

B R ERE @)

ii.

iii.

I B B 51 B 2(BVI) (&)

BEzANOeEEREAEEFE
HEETF - EHEEFEZEIEZRE
R E M ERRAZBRE  BRR
RIERE EAEETERADE
R ARAEBEEZEBVIRFE
X 2 Eth AR 2 TS EUR AT RE
AR - BREDERTEZBERE
MERBHE - WahEBRRAZE
BIHREEMABEEBV)ZBERER
EEEHMSER CREMEDL

W FE K S5 B PR R oK SR

RZZE—=F+A=+—H ARQF
F1 S — I Ak 6 ok BEBIPR B oK E )
B - BERZT—NF=A+=H%
% o BREEE R LS TS RIFRE
Bt ERREEREBED
56,008,000/ 7T © 7k Z4 B[R sk 2473
BOEERZRFREEREEESE
REFEHEEE -

929
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

20. ¥ - BERRKRE

EQUIPMENT
a. The Group a. A&
Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment
Leasehold e Motor
improvements HER vehicles
HENEES BAERE RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FATT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2012 W-ZT——F
—A—AR 1,040 14,951 397 16,388
Additions NE 12 12
Disposal HE - - - -
Exchange realignment B 5,3 B 17 500 14 531
At 31 December 2012 RZZT——F
+-RB=+—8 1,057 15,463 411 16,931
Additions NE 998 289 - 1,287
Disposal HE - (616) - 616)
Written-off ik (1,063) (811) - (1,874)
Exchange realignment BEE 5,5 B 6 387 11 404
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%F
+-RB=+—8 998 14,712 422 16,132
Accumulated depreciation ZFHTERREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F
—H—H 991 11,279 349 12,619
Charge for the year FNEHE 58 2,164 17 2,239
Exchange realignment b 5 R 8 423 12 443
At 31 December 2012 R-B——F
+=B=+-H 1,057 13,866 378 15,301
Charge for the year FRETR 454 1,218 17 1,689
Disposal HE 6 (554) - (548)
Written-off i) (1,069 (765) (16) (1,850)
Exchange realignment b 5 A% 6 360 9 375
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F
+-A=1+—8 454 14,125 388 14,967
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+-A=+—H 544 587 34 1,165
At 31 December 2012 W-ZT——F
+-A=1+—8 - 1,597 33 1,630
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""2*0 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 20. % - BMEKRRE @
EQU'PMENT (Continued)
\ b. The Company b. ZA2QFH

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office

improvements equipment

HEYWE GHH £E Total
#E RBRAERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET FHE T
Cost A
At 1 January 2012 and R=—Z——F—F—H
31 December 2012 r=Z—=—F+=ZR=+—H - 68 68
Additions NE 998 61 1,059
101
At 31 December 2018 W-_ZE—=%F+_-_A=+—H 998 129 1,127
Accumulated EFITERBIE

depreciation
and impairment

At 1 January 2012 WN-—Z——%—H—H - 15 15
Charge for the year FAFHR - 14 14
At 31 December 2012 W-_Z——F+_-_F=+—H - 29 29
Charge for the year FNETR 454 24 478
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 454 53 507

Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+_-_A=+—H 544 76 620

At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H - 39 39
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE ;’
_.-"

(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

- ?
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 21. AIHHESRERE
FINANCIAL ASSETS
|
The Group and the Company
REBREAAR
2013 2012
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Listed equity securities at fair value ERERES - AT E
- In Hong Kong — &HE - 249
During the year , all the available-for-sale financial assets FRNEHEE2HIHEESREE -
were disposed.
22. INVESTMENTS IN 22. R BATRIZRE
SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
KA T
2013 2012
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT - AR 800,111 877,859
Less: impairment losses W IRBERAZBEESE
on investment costs (800,011) (800,011)
- 77,848
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest— HB AR ZE&HNERR  2ERERET
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying ERNH c ERE2RAEREA R TFEME

amounts of these amounts approximate to their fair value.
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INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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22, RIBRABIZ2’RE »

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2013 are as follows:

Name of company

NEER

China E-Learning
(Hong Kong) Limited
PEEEHE (BB ERAH

New Beida Business
StudyNet Group Limited
M AEEREEERAT

Best Boom Enterprises Limited

Beijing Hua Tuo Education
Technology Company
Limited (note a)

IRERYENRERAT
(Mizta)

Beijing Ke Xiong Education
Company Limited (note a)

GRS ERAT
(Fista)

IN Medical (BVI) Group
Limited
BHEZBVIEEERAT

IN Medical Group Limited
HARBEEZERLA

Hunan IIN Medical Network
Technology Development
Company Limited (note a)

iR
BR 2R (Hizta)

Place of incorporation/
registration/operations

ELEAYETIVES-$ ks

Hong Kong
&k

BV
RBRLES

BVI
RERAHS

PRC
HE

PRC
fE

BV
REBRLES

Hong Kong
BE

PRC
HE

Issue and fully paid
up share capital/
registered capital
BARBRRE/
ZRER

Ordinary shares HK$1
BT ERR

Ordinary shares
US$10,000
10,000% T &E K

Ordinary shares US$10
10T ERK

Registered capital
HK$40,000,000
40,000,000% TiE A A

Registered capital
RMBS5,000,000
ARH5,000,0007T A A

QOrdinary shares
HK$13,677,288
13,677,288 L LA R

Ordinary shares
HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ T & @Mk

Registered capital
RMB14,530,808
ANR#14,530,808 LA A A

FEMBATIRN-_E—=+=-A=+—8H

ZEIBIWT :

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company
KARRERAEREL D

Directly Indirectly
EE B
100% -
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

IRER

Provision of management
services to group companies
MEERTREERRY

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

BERE

Provision of occupational
education, industry
certification course,
skills training and
education consultation

REBEYE TERERE

RSN RABHA

Provision of occupational
education, industry
certification course,
skills training and
education consultation

REBEYE TERERE

RERHIRARRS
Investment holding

RAZR

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

RARR
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(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

22,

INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

22, RIBRABIZ2’RE @

Issue and fully paid
up share capital/

Proportion ownership

Place of incorporation/ registered capital interest held by k
Name of company registration/operations BOIRBRRE/ the Company Principal activities
NAER HMEY G/ SEnE HMER ARRBEREAERRLA TEXHR
Directly Indirectly
E# G

Distance Education College of PRC Registered capital - 51% Provision of distance

Beijing University of H RMB900,000 learning program

Chinese Medicine AR#900,0007 A A& in Chinese medicine
GTRRBERS RETEERRYERE

ERAEER
Everjoy International Media BVI Ordinary shares - 100% Distribution of event

Corporation (note b) RERIES HK$8 tickets
KERREEAR AR (H3Eb) BETEER PEEBFIR
Everjoy Technology BVI Ordinary shares - 100% Provision of design, development,

Development Corporation RERNES HK$387,575 and improvement of software

(note b) 3875758 L E R system
KERBERERAR (H3Eb) RERHRGNRE R RYE

104 Notes: BIEE -
a. These are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established a. REFBIKZ ZINEBEERE -
in the PRC.

b. These two subsidiaries were classified on assets b. ZMENB AR E DB AN EAFED

EEE (RME160) AZHEER =T —
ME=A+-B5%MK -

classified as held for sale (see note 16(b)) and the
disposal was complied on 12 March 2014.

RELIFREMEIE - ZFHEQBLE
EREHES

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

23. INVENTORY 23. 78

The Group
AEE
2013
—E—=

HK$°000
TERT

HK$’'000
TAET

[BRS 183 172
B REEER (172) (172)

Cost
Less: impairment losses

11 -




~24. TRADE AND OTHER
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24. EZ R HMBEWERNK

RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
rEE b N/NE|

2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F ~—T——F =ZB-= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T T FTET FHIT
Trade receivables =) - 1,439 - -
Less: impairment losses  Ji : JR{E & 1B - (1,439) - -

Deposits and other e RHEMEY
receivables IR 104.576 106,088 591 16,533
Prepayments TR B 2,627 7,320 - -
Less: impairment losses  J& : JR{E &8 (18,077) (33,450) - -
89.126 79,958 591 16,533

An aging analysis of trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

R RYIEFNBRERRZRE DT

The Group
£
2013 2012

—Eg—= —E——4F

HK$°000
FTERx

HK$’000
TET

The Company
P NN
2013 2012
—E—= —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THETT

105

30H K - - - -
31HZE60H - - - -
61HZ90H 4 - - - -
HBiB90H - 1,439 - -

Within 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

1,439 - -

AEE-RAFFREHEARERE A
EEH - EXBEZEIREERRBERE
EHRCAMZFE AR EEERLES
RE(CRZFRBDER/AWRE - BARE
3 R R AR o

General credit term that the Group offers to customers
is 30 days from billing. Trade receivables disclosed above
include amounts which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised
an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable.

FRKSE  FANTEREREES

There is no credit period for tuition fee as they are normally ==hiny il
received in advance. HY o



106

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE
(Expressed in HK$) (LA 7T %1 7R)

24. TRADE AND OTHER 24,

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade
and other receivables were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables are
recognised based on the credit history of customers, such
as financial difficulties or default in payments, and current
market conditions. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The Group’s movement for provision of impairment of
trade receivables is as follows:

ESREMEWRR @

RERERR - NEE 2 E 5 KA ERIR
AEREEREHEREE - ERDRME L & ',l
WHIRTIIRIE R P 2 5 B Ac 8k (an B B B sk
HoRFRIA) MIRITTHER - NEEIW EatZ
FRESTBEERR -

REEEME S ERURZURER B2 Z
T~

The Group The Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —TE—_F ZEE—=
HK$’000 HIK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T FHET T
At 1 January n—H—H 1,439 1,391 - -
Written-off ke (1,439) - - -~
Exchange realignment PE 3 2 - 48 - -
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H - 1,439 - -

The Group’s movement for provision of impairment of

AREBEBEMEEFIERER R ZE L0

other receivables is as follows:

T~

The Group The Company
RE RAF]

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E—=F —ZE—_—F ZZEB-—= —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT FHET T T

At 1 January n—H—H 33,450 27,613 - -

Impairment losses B E 1R 11,116 4,902 = -

Transfer to assets HENER

classified as held BIEREEE

for sale (11,116) - - -

Written-off i 8E (20,745) - = -

Exchange realignment ME 3, 38 B 5,372 935 = —

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 18,077 33,450 - -
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: ~25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 & RIREEEER

I The Group The Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F —T—_%F —E-=F —T—_fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET TER FHET
Bank balances RIS 15,038 12,429 773 3
Cash balances B 63 9,880 49 41
Cash and bank balances R RIBTHER
included in a disposal GTADEARE
group classified as TEHEm LS AR
held for sale 13,849 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents ZAIREHER

in the consolidated mRe kRS

statement of cash flow £@EIER 28,950 22,309 822 44 107
Cash and cash equivalents of approximately REE RS RIREFEIEE 428,096,000
HK$28,096,000 (2012: HK$12,438,000) for the Group BT (ZZ—ZF 12,438,000 7T) J5LAA
are denominated in Renminbi, which is not a freely REFE MARBIIFBEHRLBZREE @
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of H HNEE FRS B AR B B A9 SN E B AR
the PRC is subject to the exchange control imposed by R -

the PRC government.

Deposits with banks are interest bearing at the prevailing WITHEFIRBIIMSMERGTE o
market rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE
(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. ES N EHMENERR

The Group The Company
TEE ¥ YN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—g—= —E—_—F ZZEB—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T FHE T FHTT

Trade payables E S ENERR 578 14 =
Other payables H b fE 3RI8 19,999 3,843 129 2,382
Receipt in advance Sl €T E] 20,425 20,057 = -
Accrued charges FEFTE A 7,166 7,036 5,227 6,670
48,168 30,950 5,356 9,052
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of EIRENERRBEARZERDTOT ¢

reporting period is as follows:

The Group The Company
AEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB—=Ff _—"T-—_—_F =ZB-=
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHET TER FHEIT
Within 30 days 30HA - - - -
31 to 60 days 31HZE60HH - - - -
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H A - - - -
Over 90 days im0 H 578 14 - -
578 14 - -
The average credit period on cost of goods sold and HEEmRRHERF KA FHEERA
services provided is 1-3 months. The Group has financial 1E3M[A - NEE 2 B %R E R IR
risk management policies in place to ensure that all K UBEREBEMNFENEEIETHEA
payables are paid within the credit timeframe. BT e




¢ (a)

(b)

""‘E7. DEFERRED TAXATION

The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements during the
years are as follows:

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

27. IREFE

(a)

rEH

R BHS HOR & NHER 2 IR R I
(&%) BEARDH RRAERZ S
mT

Accelerated tax

Depreciation Tax losses Total

MEBIEFTE HIEEE st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FH T FH T T T

At 1 January 2012, W-_Z——4—H—H 70 (70) -

Movement for the year 4 A% 12 (12) -
At 31 December 2012 R -ZT— 4

+=-A=+—8H 82 (82) -

Movement for the year 4 A% (82) 82 -

R-E—=F

+=—A=+—8

At 31 December 2013

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had
estimated the unused tax losses of approximately
HK$76,748,000 (2012: HK$182,750,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$15,837,000 (2012: HK$138,766,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC
of approximately HK$60,911,000 (2012:
HK$43,984,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits.

The Company

At the end of the reporting date, the Company
had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$15,837,000 (2012: HK$138,766,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax indefinitely assets have been
recognised in respect of such losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

(b)

MR HESEAR - AEEGFAT A
TES S AR OB T < RB) A BIIAE B LY
B76,748,0008 L (ZF — 4 :
182,750,000/ 7T) ° FARARAETEAIR
Hom F R - W\ E B EER
RETRIEEE - XEBRBEBELE Y
FHIBE184915,837,0008 L (- T ——
F : 138,766,000/87T) + AJ PR AP
KIHEEBEB 2 AR 2 R RERB &
F o

AEBRFBRELEZHEBIELY
60,911,000 L (ZF — =4 :
43,984,000 7T) IR —E R FANAE
HEH AR IR PER T ) o

ZANNC]

Rifs BETAR  AQREAEH
2 BiIAE1E#915,837,0008 L (& —
—4F : 138,766,000/ Jr) 7] A 1EH 4
KA T o 1P R BE TEBI R 2R ) 2k
R MW B ZEEIERERER IR
ERIEEE o
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(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

28. SHARE CAPITAL

The Group and the Company

28. R
AEBR KA T

Number of
shares Share capital
RHEAR S
HK$’000
T T
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2012 and RZEZ—=—%—H—H
31 December 2012 r—F——F
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each +—-—A=+—8H
SRAEESB T
ERL 10,000,000,000 5,000,000
Capital reorganisation e AREHR 40,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each +—-—A=+—8H
HEREEC1ET
2B 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BITREE :
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H
Ordinary shares of SBREECSBIT.L 1,464,341,820 732,171
HK$0.5 each TR
Issue of shares by conversion AlRAR R i
of convertible notes mEErT IR, a 7,537,082 3,768
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB-—-F+=-A=+—H
Ordinary shares of BREEISEBTZZTER
HK$0.5 each 1,471,878,902 735,939
Issue of shares by conversion AR R
of convertible notes mEE1TR% (9 b 142,344,000 14,235
Capital Reorganisation iR EH c - (588,752)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB-=F+=A=+—H
Ordinary shares of BREEIIBTZ2ZTER
HK$0.1 each 1,614,222,902 161,422




3=

’? "
8. SHARE CAP'TAL (Continued)

A

29.

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$7,612,454 were
converted by holders to subscribe for 7,537,082 shares.
Details of the conversion during the year are set out in
note 31.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$14,234,400 were
converted by holders to subscribe for 142,344,000
shares. Details of the conversion during the year are
set out in note 31.

On 22 July 2013 (Cayman Islands time), the relevant
court order confirming the capital reduction and the
minutes approved by the Court pursuant to the
Companies Law were filed with the Registrar of
Companies in the Cayman lIslands and all other
conditions of the capital reorganisation were fulfilled.
The capital reorganisation became effective on Monday,
22 July 2013 (after trading hours).

RESERVES

(a)

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 48 of the annual report.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

28. B @)

29.

(GRS

(a)

BE_2——F+-_A=1+—R1LEFE -
AR EERRE ABIRASEE7,612,4547%
T2 AR EE - LAREET7,587,082% %
19 o FRNZIRBFBEAMI LS ©

REBEE-_T—=F+-_A=+—HLHF
E TEBREBRFBEAERASHE
14,234,400 0 2 [ IR Z & - DARIE
142,344,0000& A& 10 ° F Rz RIRFFHBEERR
FfEE31 o

R-ZE—=F+A-+_-H (HSHEH
) - BRERRAEE .2 BRER G2 &
BIERENRERRIE 2 @ # L8 E M5
EHENFEMEZRL  BERAEMEZA
BHEMGHFEEEN  MBRAELAE R =
T—=FtA-+-HEH)XFHR
BHER o

rEH

RNEFZ RIAFEERNEBRE 2 B
REESSHNFERFISEH Z AR E
BRP 25 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2 — T —=F+ - A=+ —HILtFE
(Expressed in HK$) A B TTHIR)

29. RESERVES (continued) 29. {##E @

(b) The Company (b) ZA&AFH

Convertible
Share-based  note equity
Share payment reserve  Accumulated

premium reserve TRR losses
REEE URXfIRE FEERRRE ZiF8
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

itz TiEn TiEn T T

At 1 January 2012 RoE-—F-f- 171,329 14,494 8,041 861492 (667,629
Total comprehensive loss TEE2EFRLE

for the year - - - (24,311) (24,311)
Settlement of Convertible notes B TAREE - - (616) - (616)
Issue of convertible notes EITARRE - - 10,909 - 10,909
Issue of shares by conversion R E g EER

112 of convertible notes &kt 5,321 - (486) - 4,835

Redemption of convertible notes R T AEZ % - - (732) - (732)
At 31 December 2012 and R-Z2-—#+-A=1-H

1 January 2013 B-E-=£-f-F 176,650 14,494 7116 @85809 (677,549
Total comprehensive loss TEE2EFRLE

for the year - - - (92,098) (92,098)
Issue of convertible notes ETURARRE 31 - - 73 - 73
Issue of employee Share option ~ &47(E B RE - 6,204 - - 6,224
Redemption of convertible notes ~ EE T ARZE 3 - - (905) 209 (696)
Transfer of share option reserve PR MERER £

upon the forfeiture of BRERE

share option - (1,519 - 1,519 -
Capital reorganisation (note 28(c)) A B4 (P 28(c) (176,650) - - 765,401 588,751

At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZE+ZA=1-H - 19,199 16,284 (210,772) (175,289)




P

ﬁy A
;? "
qg RESERVES (Continued)

R } )

The Company (Continued)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
excess of the nominal value of the share capital
and the share premium account of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation
over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association,
the share premium of the Company is distributable
to the shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. At 31 December
2013, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to shareholders (2012:
Nil).

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 36 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to accumulate losses
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

20. f#E

(b)

¥ N/NCTIE )

AEEERFRERESEEHEMK
B2 MY B A B 2 B AR E B M m(E
REBAARRBRLEETZRARELZ
R o

REMSHSARERADIEHE

RAR MR ERERKAREE AR -
RATBENEERBEEHH 2

Z 1B - AR R A A AR R 5 R AR 19
HE N _E—=Ft+-A=+—
B ARAEERAEADQBLELW
ARARESRZHEEHE (T ——F
&) o

B S R B E R HE R RTTE
2B NFHE - & RIS R
HA MU R 2 G K -
HHERBREETE  HEBESE
AR R ER - BERBEEEM
S ERE - HEASRKEEARE
18-
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30. OTHER BORROWINGS 30. HMbERK

The Group and |
the Company

AEBRAAT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Borrowing from a shareholder-Yang Dong Jun Al —Z R EER — HBHRE - 51,070
Borrowing form other parties: e E Ath 75 18 5K
Gong Di Qing E=thE 699 689
Zhiku Capital Investment Limited BEEARKRERR QT 24,145 3,955
Superb Summit International Group Limited & & EEE £ BB R A & 939 1,023
Huang Qun =R 9,700 -
Current Vi) 35,483 56,737
114 Borrowing from a shareholder-Yang Dong Jun Al — &R R ER —5HE 31,304 -
Non-Current IR ED 31,304 -
The amount due to Yang Dong Jun is unsecured, and XN TFTHEREZREBBLAEEER - EF
HK$22,188,000 of this amount has a maturity date of 22,188,000/ L1.5F I8 - FHEH12% -
1.5-year and an annual interest of 12%, and the remaining BRTAARE -

amount is interest-free.

The amount due to Gong Di Qing is unsecured, and XN TERB2ARBLEBER - EF
HK$200,000 of this amount has a maturity date of 200,0008 T1FEIH) - FHE Q5% » # TR
1-year and an annual interest of 5%, and the remaining BREE -

amount is interest-free.

The amount due to Zhiku Capital Investment Limited is BN TEEEREEBR AR ZIALRE
unsecured, interest-free and with a maturity date of BR - 2B RIFEIH -

1-year.

The amount due to Superb Summit International Group BN THERAREBEABRARZRIALE
Limited is unsecured, with a maturity date of 1-year and BR - 1FEH R FRNERER °

an annual interest of 5%.

The amount due to Huang Qun is unsecured, interest- ENERZABREER  RENERENK
free and repayable on demand. Big -
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES
The Group and the Company

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical
(BVI)

On 23 April 2009, pursuant to the acquisition of 61.27%
interest in [IN Medical (BVI) from Multico Holdings Limited
(“Vendor A”) and 38.73% from a group of minority
shareholders (“Vendor B”), the Company issued
convertible notes (the “Convertible notes 2009”) as partial
settlement of the acquisition consideration.

The principal terms of the Convertible notes 2009 are as

follows:
Date of issue 23 April 2009
Aggregate principal HK$32,770,000
amount
Denomination in HK$200,000
multiple of
Interest rate Nil
Adjusted conversion HK$1.01
price
Maturity dates Principal amount approximately

HK$20,150,000 matured in
48 months from the date of
issue and the remaining
principal amount of
approximately HK$12,620,000
matured in 24 months from
the date of issue

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

31. TTERERE

REBEARF

I BB B &1l B8 25 (BVI) 2 100% #E 25

R-ZZZAFMA-+=H ' FEMultico
Holdings Limited ([ & 77 1 |) W B 51 &5 4%
BV)261.27%Em kM —HLE8REIE S
Z1) WB#E38.73% s + AN RIEITAIRRE
B ZZEZNFRBRER]) X35 WE
RE -

“EENFUBMBERBR T ZEFOT ¢

FTEE —EEAENA-+=H
PN R 32,770,0007% 7T

[k 200,000/ 7T 2 = &

BR 3

LRAEBmRE 1.0187T

FER A N4 58 4920,150,0007% 7T
BE1THEEET48E A A
gl i S N N =0
12,620,000/ 7t B %47 A
HR#e st 241E A M EIH
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(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical
(BVI) (Continued)

(@)

Conversion period

The holders of the Convertible notes 2009 shall
have the rights to convert the whole or any part
of the outstanding principal amount into new
ordinary shares in the Company. The
commencement dates of conversion fall within the
period from 31 December 2009 to 30 June 2012.
The shares to be issued and allotted upon
conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects
among themselves and with all other ordinary
shares in issue by the Company on the date of
such allotment and issue.

Redemption option

The holders of Convertible notes 2009 shall have
the rights to redeem up to 25% of the principal
amount of the Convertible notes 2009 outstanding
at an amount equals to the principal amount of
the Convertible notes 2009. The commencement
dates of redemption fall within the period from 31
December 2009 to 30 June 2012. The Company
is not required, at the maturity of the Convertible
notes 2009, to redeem or pay any amount of the
Convertible notes 2009.

The Convertible notes 2009 contains liability
component, equity component and redemption
option derivatives. The holders’ redemption option
derivative is not closely related to the host contract
as the redemption amount is not close to the
amortised cost of the liability on the redemption
date. Holders’ redemption option derivative is
measured at fair value with change in fair value
recognised in consolidated income statement.

TBEREE @
AEBRAQT @)

I BB B 71 B8 2 (BVI) 2 100% #E 8 (&)

(@)

“ETNFARERRZBAEABRE
# 2 B T 78 5 Z*E@$@%L
BBARAR MBI - BB
ETENF+-A= + S R —
E-—_FRA=ZTHERIL - REHE
# T 31T R BC B 2 BUD Rt R AR
AIRZEHENETAHMAEEME #
ERARES T EOFARFWA -

AI

A

3?31

BOEERE

—ETNFARREERAEABER
ﬁém_yzﬂiTﬁkmf$éﬁ
ZaH - BRI —TENFABRRERE
Zﬁ*ﬁa@$‘£§EZ§%25% o fE [0
BB —ZETZNF+_A=+—HZE
ZE—ZFANA=+HI - KRFE
AR BT NFA R EREWR
HZZTNF AR R IEE DS
EfRI&H -

EENFAIHRRERBEEE E%
CREBS REREERETA

#F ﬁ@L&%MilﬁﬁI
’J P EEYEER - TTRRER SR
RO ENED BB #HK
Koo FHAMBOERERITETAT
BATENE  RFEZEHIRGE
Wy %8 R FER

o

% D>/I1mtl>\l
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. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical

et (BVI) (Continued)

©

Profit guarantee

Certain members of Vendor B undertake to the
Group that the profits after tax shown in the
audited consolidated financial statements of
Hunan I[IN Medical, prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for the year ending 31 December 2009
should not be less than RMB8.5 million and will
compensate the Group for any shortfall, in
proportion of their respective shareholding in IIN
Medical (BVI) to the extent of an aggregate
17.31% thereof, between the guaranteed profit
and the actual profit.

Based on the audited financial results of Hunan
IIN Medical, the profit guarantee requirement is
fulfilled.

The directors of the Company have assessed the
fair value of the Convertible notes 2009 with
embedded derivative. At 31 December 2012, the
liability component of the Convertible notes 2009
is approximately HK$59,000 which is stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
and the fair value of the derivative component of
the Convertible notes 2009 is approximately HK$
nil of asset (2011: HKS nil) and nil of liability (2011:
HK$250,000). The effective interest expenses of
Convertible notes 2009 amounting to
approximately HK$103,000 have been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

3. IRREE »
AEERARQT @)

I BB B 71 B8 2 (BVI) 2 100% #E 2% ()

(©

A B RE

BR L2 ETHRERAEERE -
HEABREHE_TTAF+_A=
+-HIEFEZEBEZEAVERE
(BEBEEBLARETRAGR) K2
BB i K T FE D 7 A R #58,500,000
TC o WK EREMENREFNEZ
BRT  BEERBEMBEBV)ZE
BRRELLS - MASEELBEEERE
A17.31% 2 1 -

RENEBEABEE 2 CECMBE
B ENAMBRERRK -

RAABESEETEREHRARNITET
B2 ZZTTNFARBREENQF
B -RZE——-F+=-_A=+—8 "
ZETNFURBREBRZBETH L
/59,0008 7T+ JH{EAERF BIEE
BSHACADNER - M TN F 8%
EEZOTETARSHRAFENRE
ETET(CE—F : THD) KA
BEZEL(ZE——F : 250,000/
7)o ZETNFIBRRBIEZ BEF
BRI #103,0008 7T r EREE=
BE-—HF+-A=1+—BUIFEZEH
SR ANER
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical
(BVI) (Continued)

©

Profit guarantee (Continued)

The methods and assumptions applied for the
valuation of the Convertible notes 2009 are as
follows:

Valuation of liability component

At the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value of liability
component was calculated based on the present
value of the initial recognition contractually
determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was
determined with reference to the average yield of
notes with similar credit rating and remaining time
to maturity. In subsequent periods, the liability
component is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 11.22%.

The Convertible notes 2009 were fully redeemed
on 18 July 2013. The effective interest expenses
of Convertible notes 2009 amounting to
approximately HK$2,000 have been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

TE-=ZHF+-A=+—-HIFE

TBEREE @
AEBRAQT @)

I BB B 71 B8 2 (BVI) 2 100% #E 8 (&)

(©

S—

MBRE (&)

R_EENFABREREAERER
ZIERBRWT ¢

BEFDZI1EE

RETHE - BEID HRATER
R BEID 2 A FETIREV P
RETHNETE 2 ARBRSRENEE
matE - RV EWEEITIR - MAE
KRR 2RBREETRRERTIAH
FIerrr B 2 BB AT R
BT NI EHE agdsERE
SRR BRI BB AT ER - BEE S
ZEBBERAE/11.22% °

ZETNFAURRERER = —=
FHATN\BEREER - —ZETNF
AR 2 BRER S5 49722,000
B ERBEZZTE—=F+="A=
T-BIEFEZEERGRER -




CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 A Convertible notes:

On 9 May 2011, the Company issued 1% coupon

convertible notes (the “CN 2011 A”) as settlement of other

loan which was due to the former shareholder of New
Beida as at 31 December 2010.

The principal terms of the CN 2011 A are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

9 May 2011
HK$89,999,934

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the date
of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$1,000,000 on each conversion (save that if
an at time, the principal outstanding amount of
the note is less than HK$1,000,000, the whole
(but not part only) of the principal outstanding
amount of the notes may be converted) into shares
in board lot or multiples thereof at any time from
the issue date at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.50 per share up to (and excluding) the fifth
business day immediately before the maturity
date.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

3. IRREE »

AEBRARQT #®)
ZE-—FHURKREEA
RoZ——ERAAR  AAFBTI%ES
T A= ([~ T —— AR EEAl) -
DENR-ZE—F&+-A=+—BENH
b AR 7 E A B 2R -

“E-—FUBERBAZ T 2ERMT

BITHH —ZE——FHANA
PN L 89,999,934 7T

B 1%

KHBRBRE  0.5087T

A BE#1TAAIRET36ME A

EEREABHRBEITHHREERE
EINHEBHIEAEEER (TREZ
A) AR5 R 8 8%0.5078 TR #) 22 #
REZZEZ 2HREAHBOKREE
REBRHBAE—FHUEFRNG - 81
RBMEBEBENAREERSBE TR
1,000,000/ 7T+ (M fie 5 {71 I ] 7]
PREBEONREERASEIR
1,000,000/ ¢ + Al A] 3 Al AR = 4%
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 A Convertible notes: (Continued)

(0)

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem
the notes before the maturity date.

Valuation of liability component

As the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value is calculated
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on
the discount rate of 7.20%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the CN 2011 A is approximately HK$29,545,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of CN 2011 A amounting to approximately
HK$1,774,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continuea)
The Group and the Company (Continued)
2011 B Convertible notes:

On 11 May 2011, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 B”), the principal terms
of the CN 2011 B are as follows:

Date of issue 11 May 2011
Aggregate principal amount  HK$36,200,000
Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.50

Maturity date 6 months from the

date of issue

On 11 May 2012, the Company has fully redeemed the
note with principal amount plus any interest accrued in
2012 and 30% of additional compensation, with an
annual interest rate of 12%. Therefore, the Company has
accrued such loan payment of HK$51,070,000 as at year
ended 31 December, 2012.

2011 C Convertible notes:

On 25 August 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 C”), the principal terms
of the CN 2011 C are as follows:

Date of issue 25 August 2011
Aggregate principal amount  HK$19,500,000
Interest rate 3%

HK$0.50

12 months from the

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date
date of issue
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 D Convertible notes:

On 14 September 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon

convertible notes (the “CN 2011 D”), the principal terms
of the CN 2011 D are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

14 September 2011
HK$22,500,000

Interest rate 3%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

HK$0.50
12 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$1,000,000 on each conversion (save that if
an at time, the principal outstanding amount of
the note is less than HK$1,000,000, the whole
(but not part only) of the principal outstanding
amount of the notes may be converted) into shares
in board lot or multiples thereof at any time from
the issue date at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.50 per share up to (and excluding) the fifth
business day immediately before the maturity
date.

On 6 September 2012, the Company and the CN
Holder of CN 2011D have agreed to a 6-month
postponement of the original maturity date to 6
March 2013 (the “New Maturity Date”) and so the
related conversion period during which the CN
Holder can exercise the conversion right attaching
to the notes shall accordingly expire on (but
excluding) the fifth business day immediately
before the New Maturity Date.
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. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 D Convertible notes: (Continued)

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem
the notes before the maturity date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN 2011 D as at 14 September
2011 amounted to HK$21,908,000. The fair value
is calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate
based on the discount rate of 9.69%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the CN2011 D is approximately HK$12,964,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. In January 2013, a noteholder
obtained a court order for the principal amount of
HK$9,700,000 forcing the payment of debt, the
Company has complied in full. The effective
interest expenses of CN 2011 D amounting to
approximately HK$856,000 have been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

2012 EICN-1 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “EICN-1"), the principal terms of
the EICN-1 are as follows:

Date of issue 20 December 2012
Aggregate principal amount  HK$20,600,000
Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.50
Maturity date 36 months from

the date of issue
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-1 Convertible notes: (Continued)

(@)

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the Notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of EICN-1 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$17,288,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the EICN-1 is approximately HK$18,297,000
which is stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest
expenses of EICN-1 amounting to approximately
HK$1,417,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-2 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “EICN-2”), the principal terms of
the EICN-2 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$29,000,000

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.
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CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FEI@KZBELEBERAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-2 Convertible notes: (Continued)

©

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of EICN-2 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$24,337,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the EICN-2 is approximately HK$25,758,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of EICN-2 amounting to approximately
HK$1,995,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-3 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “EICN-3”), the principal terms of
the EICN-3 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$8,635,956

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.
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For the year ended 31 December 20183 H 2 —Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-3 Convertible notes: (Continued)

©

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of EICN-3 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$7,247,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the EICN-3 is approximately HK$7,67 1,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of EICN-3 amounting to approximately
HK$594,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-1 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “ETCN-1”), the principal terms of
the ETCN-1 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$7,000,000

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.
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(Expressed in HK$) (JA 7 7T 51 7R)

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-1 Convertible notes: (Continued)

©

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of ETCN-1 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$5,875,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the ETCN-1 is approximately HK$6,218,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of ETCN-1 amounting to approximately
HK$482,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-2 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “ETCN-2”), the principal terms of
the ETCN-2 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$2,611,906

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-2 Convertible notes: (Continued)

©

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of ETCN-2 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$2,192,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the ETCN-2 is approximately HK$2,320,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of ETCN-2 amounting to approximately
HK$180,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2013.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

CN2014-1 Convertible notes:

On 29 November 2013, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN2014-1"), the principal terms
of the CN2014-1 are as follows:

Date of issue

29 November 2013

Aggregate principal amount  HK$6,000,000
Interest rate 1%
Adjusted conversion price HK$0.10

Maturity date

(a)

(b)

12 months from
the date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

CN2014-1 Convertible notes: (Continued)

(c)

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN2014-1 as at 29 November
2013 amounted to HK$6,340,000. The fair value
is calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 6.8%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the CN2014-1 is approximately HK$5,697,000
which is stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest
expenses of CN2014-1 amounting to
approximately HK$35,000 have been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative
Binomial model is used for valuation of holder
redemption option derivative. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

31 December 2013

Stock price HK$0.09
Exercise price HK$0.10
Option life 11 months
Risk free rate 0.21%

31. TEKREE »
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

CN2014-2 Convertible notes:

On 29 November 2013, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN2014-2”), the principal terms
of the CN2014-2 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

29 November 2013
HK$5,000,000

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(a)

(b)

HK$0.10
12 months from
the date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

CN2014-2 Convertible notes: (Continued)

(c)

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN2014-2 as at 29 November
2013 amounted to HK$5,283,000. The fair value
is calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 6.8%.

As at 31 December 2013, the liability component
of the CN2014-2 is approximately HK$4,747,000
which is stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest
expenses of CN2014-2 amounting to
approximately HK$29,000 have been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative
Binomial model is used for valuation of holder
redemption option derivative. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

31 December 2013

Stock price HK$0.09
Exercise price HK$0.10
Option life 11 months
Risk free rate 0.21%
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

CN2014-3 Convertible notes:

On 10 December 2013, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN2014-3”), the principal terms
of the CN2014-3 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

10 December 2013
HK$10,000,000

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(a)

(b)

HK$0.10
12 months from
the date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the notes may be converted) into shares in board
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continueq) 31. IEAKREE »

CN2014-3 Convertible notes: (Continued) 2014-3A/ AR EHE (@)

(c) Valuation of liability component (c) EfFEH7z1EE
The fair value of CN2014-3 as at 10 December 2014-3A MR EBN _E—=F+=
2013 amounted to HK$9,894,000. The fair value A+ H®&AF(E/59,894,000/7T A
is calculated using binomial tree models at a rate FETE R = X R A 26.01%H 86
based on the discount rate of 6.01%. REFTH -
The notehoder converted all the principal of RZE—=F+ZA+NA  ZEHF
CN2014-3 in the amount of HK$10,000,000 on B AR #2014-3F[ MR Z IR K 2 5 A
19 December 2013. £ %810,000,000%5 7T °

CN2014-4 Convertible notes: 2014-4T[ AR EHE -

On 10 December 2013, the Company issued 1% coupon RZE—=FF+ZA+H  XRARETI%E

convertible notes (the “CN2014-4"), the principal terms B A BIREE ([2014-40 K Z1E])

138 of the CN2014-4 are as follows: 2014-4R] MR ER 2 E B ERAT -

Date of issue 10 December 2013 BHTHE —E—=%+=-A+H

Aggregate principal amount  HK$4,234,400 e B 4,234,40078 7T

Interest rate 1% B= 1%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.10 LARHBRE  0.1087T

Maturity date 12 months from FHER R BErTHEIR12(E A

the date of issue

(a) Conversion period: (a) HEEE:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the EBEREABENRBBRITAERE
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of A ERAEEER (TRIEZ
the note in an amount of not less than R) AR FZE &80 108 TR Fl 0%
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an BREGEIE 2 2HHEMI D REER
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the REBEHBEBE—FREFRD - X
note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not HBMEENREERA2BTILR
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of 500,000/ 7T+ (M fil 74 {a] 5 ] A #2
the notes may be converted) into shares in board &% 2= 45 /) oK 838 N £ 8E 2 10 500,000
lot or multiples thereof at any time from the issue BT - AR AR RREE 2 280 (M
date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.10 per EE—ED) REERESEE)

share up to (and excluding) the fifth business day
immediately before the maturity date.
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CN2014-4 Convertible notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

’?’l“
L
q‘l. CONVERT'BLE NOTES (Continued)

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the notes maturity date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN2014-4 as at 10 December
2013 amounted to HK$4,189,000. The fair value
is calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 6.01%.

The notehoder converted all the principal of
CN2014-4 in the amount of HK$4,234,400 on 19
December 2013.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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31. TRRRER @
ARERARF #) \

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)

THREZERFANEHEN T

The movement of the convertible notes for the year

}ﬂ'

is set out below:

Financial
derivative-
Liability Equity liability
component component SRTE Total
8ERS Exia IA-4f -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT THL TAL
Carrying amount R-ZZ--%-A-H
at 1 January 2012 LEEE 92,922 8,041 250 101,213
Issuance of new notes BT 55,461 10,909 1,478 67,848
Conversion of notes HAZEE (7,126) (486) - (7,162)
Redemption of notes EOZEER (1,711) (732) (95) (2,538)
Settlement of notes ENEER (35,584) (616) - (36,200)
140 Adjustment on interests HERE (1,100) - - (1,100)
Effective interest expense ERFBRY 3,353 - - 3,353
Change in fair value ATEEE - - (157) (157)
Carrying amount WZE-—%+-F=1-H
at 31 December 2012 L EEE 105,838 17,116 1,476 124,430
Issuance of new notes BONEE 23,918 73 1,244 25,235
Conversion of notes ABER (13,538) (696) - (14,234)
Redemption of notes BEOZEE (11) ) - (13)
Settlement of notes ENZEER (9,493) (207) - (9,700)
Effective interest expense ERFSH 7,363 - - 7,363
Interest paid ERFIE (860) - - (860)
Change in fair value NTERE - - (2,220) (2,220)
Carrying amount RZE-=F+ZA=1-H
at 31 December 2013 AR 113,217 16,284 500 130,001
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1. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continueq) 31. TEREE @

R ' The Group and the Company (Continued) AEERAQT @)
Notes: FIEE -
—
(@) Set out below are details of conversion of the Convertible (@) TXEIWRZE—ZFHB_TTNEFA
notes 2009 during the year 2012: BRI RS ¢
Principal Number of
amount of the ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
Date of conversion R AH ARREELERE BITEBEREE
(adjusted due
to share
consolidation in 2009)
HK$ (HRZZTZTNF

BT Betn & GHE )

14 January 2012 —E——4F—A+pH 3,750,000 3,712,871
31 July 2012 —2——-#tA=+—H 3,862,454 3,824,211
141
(b) Set out below are details of Redemption of the (b) TXHEHIWR —E——FBR T AFEA
Convertible notes 2009 during the year 2012: BREENFE
Principal Number of
amount of the ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
Date of redemption fEE A ARREERSHE BITEBREE
(adjusted due
to share

consolidation in 2009)
HK$ (BRZ=ZZTNF
BT W& fn & OFHEH A %)

14 January 2012 —E——-F%—A+WmA 1,250,000 Nil &=
31 October 2012 —2——#%+A=+—H 1,287,480 Nil &
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Set out below are details of Redemption of the
Convertible notes 2009 during the year 2013:

BE B8

Date of redemption

18 July 2013 —E—-=#+A+N\H

Set out below are details of settlement of the Convertible
Notes 2011 D during the year 2013:

EN B

Date of settlement

3 January 2013 —E—=%—H=H
The Group’s convertible notes were valued by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
valuer not connected with the Group, for each of the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Set out below are details of Conversion of the CN 2014-
3 and CN 2014-4 during the year 2013:

HBAH

Date of conversion

19 November 2013

The Group’s convertible notes were valued by GC
Appraisals Services Company Limited, an independent
qualified valuer not connected with the Group, for each
of the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

—E-=%#+-A+hA

31. TEKREE »
AEBRARQT @)
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(c) TXEIRZE—=FBL_FZF
BB RS

NVER

Principal Number of

amount of the ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
ARREERSHE BOEBERYE
(adjusted due

to share

consolidation in 2009)

HK$ (AZZZNF

BT R fn & B 1E )
12,221 NilZ

(d) TXHIRZE—=FEN T ——F7
1208 RIEDH I 1A

Principal Number of
amount of the ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
AEREERSHE BOEBERYE
HK$
BT
9,700,000 NilZ

AEEBE-_T——FR-FT——F+=
A=+ — B L FE S F A A AR R 5 i
AEE Y BB LA B ER P IE
HEERAREITHE -

() TXEHNN T —=4F H#2014-3A %
REN2014-4F[ AR RIBHFES ¢

Principal Number of
amount of the ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
ARREERSHE BOEBERYE
HK$
BT
14,234,400 142,344,000

HE_Z—=FR-_F—-_F+ZRA=+
—AIFESFASENTRREREHRE
AEBWERENE LA EBEERMGC
Appraisals Services Company Limited#t 1T
Mg -




33.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-cash operating
and investing activities which are not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

- In the current year, the Group settled certain other
borrowings by issue of convertible notes of
approximately HK$25,234,000.

OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office

premises and other asset, which fall due as follows:

32.

33.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

FRERS

REBZERATIREKLERKE RS B
AREERERERTRBR

— RAFE - AEEF B
15 4925,234,000/ LB 8

%o

REHYEE

MR B MRE - AEBRBRETNER
5

HitpEE 2 TR B EMAAYE 2 R &
BEREFBEIHBFIRMT

The Group
AEE

2013 2012
—_ZE—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THBxT THT
Within one year —F R 2,996 2,772
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFERF(BREERMT) - 1,587
2,996 4,359

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of
1 to 2 years (2012: 1 to 5 years).

BODNE—2—"F(CT——F: —EZ0%F)
ZEREHMER -
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34.

35.

36.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group’s
assets (2012: Nil) were pledged to secure the Group’s
banking facilities.

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

Unless otherwise disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not enter into any material
related party transactions during the year and did not
have any material balances with related parties at the
end of the reporting period.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year are disclosed in the note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

TE-=ZHF+-A=+—-HIFE

34.

35.

36.

HARARE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, financial derivatives, convertible notes
and other borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 5 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31
December 2013 in relation to each class of recognized
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables. In order to minimise
credit risk, management has certain monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables regularly at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are adequately made for
irrecoverable amounts. The credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are commercial banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit—
rating agencies. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

37.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BiREBREERE

146

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s bank deposits. All the deposits are on a floating
rate basis.

The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. However, the interest rate
profile of the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits
less any interest-bearing financial liabilities) is closely
monitored by management.

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s (loss)
before tax and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$75,000 (2012: HK$702,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the reporting date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the non-derivative
financial liabilities in existence at that date. The 50 basis
points increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”), for the years
2013 and 2012. Such exposures arise from online
professional training and multimedia education products
in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency
(i.e. Hong Kong dollar). All of the Group’s sales are
denominated in RMB for the years 2013 and 2012.
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~87. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The Group conducts its business transactions principally
in RMB. The exchange rate risk of the Group is not
significant.

Liquidity risk

For the management of the Group’s liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash
and cash equivalents considered adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
Management reviews and monitors its working capital
requirements regularly.

The following table details the contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

On demand or
within one year

g-FR
HK$'000
TR

At 31 December 2013 R=E-=F+-A=1+-H

Financial liabilites ~ @&

Trade and other payables & 5 % E fth e BR3¢ 48,168
Other borrowings EffER 35,483
Convertible notes TRERER 52,952

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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AREE B R EINESIRBOR o AT - B
EBEVERIMNERR W ENFERREEEYH
HEAINERR o

AEBTIZUARBETEREBRS - A%
B2 ERRERILTEK -

RENE & E b

REBAEBZRBES AR - NEBEERE
MEFBRePReFERAREEERRE
W2KF - ARAREEHRETRES R
HERERERPITE - EHESEHR
AMMERREEEESHEL -

TRAVNARERBERRNEHABESD
BN eRAEERESIORTRES
mE (BREAFTONXHEZFENH) BR
SERBEXNFAZEREBHFE

Total
undiscounted
cash flow
ARRE
RELR
HK$'000
TAT

More than two
years but less
than five years
WEN L
BREUR
HK$'000
THT

More than one
year but less
than two years
ot
BWESR
HK$'000
THL

Carrying
amount

REE
HK$'000
TR

- - 43,168 48,168
31,304 - 66,787 66,787
60,265 - 113,217 113,217
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37.

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to the owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the associated risks and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Company’s capital structure. The overall
strategy of the Company remained unchanged during
each of the two years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

At annual general meeting of the Company held on 23
May 2011, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) and the share option
scheme adopted on 24 November 2001 (the “Old
Scheme”) became terminated therefrom. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 23 May 2011 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date. Upon termination of
Old Scheme, no further Options under the Old Scheme
can be granted but the Options which have been granted
during the life of the Old Scheme shall continue to be
exerciseable in accordance with their terms of issue and
the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to any employee of the Group or any other
persons who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined by the
Board and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of the option which must be a business day,
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of offer of the options.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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38. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
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COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The movements in the share options of the Company

during the year are shown in the following table:

38. URZF EEHM @

B ESTE (»)
ER o ARATIRRES

FHHA T

Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2013 the year the year the year 2013
HK$
RZ8-=
. . =
SRENE RYAH ] EEHEF FRRY  ERGRE FREE ZT-R
ET
Directors
Chen Hong(noeﬂ 28/8/2008 28/08/2008-27/08/2018 1281 3,188,663 - - - 3,188,653
RE (i1 “ER)\E “RRNENAZHNRE
NAZTAR “E-\ENAZTtA
9/7/2009 09/07/2009-08/07/2019 0652 3,188,663 - - - 3,188,653
ZITNE ‘ﬁﬁnitﬂnﬁi
tAhA Z-nELANR
11212013 1/7 2/20 3-10112/2023 0.1 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
:?—: “E-CETCAt-BE
TZA+-R ZEIEEFCATH
Wi Jianya note 2) 28/8/2008 28/08/2008-27/08/2018 1281 1,342,591 - - (1,342,591) -
EiE (M2 “ETN\E “EENENBZTN\RE
NAZTNH ZE-\ENAZTLR
9/7/2009 09/07/2000-08/07/2019 0652 1,006,943 - - (1,006,943) -
=1k “RENELANRE
tANE “E-NEtANE
Li Xiangjun 28/8/2008 28/08/2008-27/08/2018 1281 2,349,534 - - - 2,349,534
3HE ZEENE ,??AEAH,+AEI
NAZTAR NENAZTHE
9/7/2009 09@7_/2009-08/07/2019 0652 4,363,420 - - - 4,363,420
“EENE “EENELANAE
tANR ZE-NELANR
Yuan Wei {note 3) 11/12/2013 11/12/2013-10/12/2023 0.1 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
=& (M3k3) -F-Z “E-CEt-AT-BE
tZA+-A ZRCZETCATR
SJUbf 15,439,794 20,000,000 - (2,349,534 38,090,260
A
Others
Hfp
In aggregate 28/8/2008 28/08/2008-27/08/2018 1281 3,692,124 - - - 3,692,124
At “3R\E 7”)\@/\)% AGE
\H /A “5-N\ENAZTLA
In aggregate 9/7/2009 09/07/2009-08/07/2019 0652 7,384,249 - - - 7,384,249
At ZEENE “EENELANAE
tANR ZE-NELANR
In aggregate 1/12/2013 1112/2013-10/12/2023 0.1 - 112,000,000 - - 112,000,000
At Z5-= &*—¢+ At-8%
TZAT-H ZECZETZATR
26,516,167 132,000,000 - [2,349,534) 156,166,633
Exercisable at the end of the year 156,166,633
RERTTR
Weighted average exercise price HKS0.90 T HK$0.10% 7T - HK$T.O01ET HKS0.2237

MEFSTRE




SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

Mr. Chen Hong has resigned as director on 14 February
2014.

Ms. Wei Jianya has resigned as director on
19 November 2013.

Mr. Yuan Wei was appointed as director on
19 November 2013.

On 11 December 2013, the Company granted

132,000,000 Options to Grantees under the Company’s
Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May 2011.

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
number of share options granted was
132,000,000 (2012: nil). Of which, 40,000,000
Options were granted to the employee of the
Company (the “Employee”) and 92,000,000
Options were granted to the Company’s external
consultants (the “Consultants”). The fair value of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme,
amounted to HK$6,224,000 of HK$0.047 each.
The fair values of the outstanding options were
derived from Trinomial Option Pricing Model by
applying the following assumptions:

Options granted to Employees

Date of grant
(dd-mm-yy)

11.12.2013

Expected

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013

38. IR EEHM =

BRESTE (»

I 3E:

1. MEAEN _E—NF_A+NBEBTE
$ °

BRGSLLINR _T—=F+— At LBE
FE=-

REEENR-Z—=F+—A+HLHEZ
EREE -

R-Z—=F+-F+—0  KAFARER
- —ERA-+=BEMZERET

g

(a)

AR AR 132,000,00017 88 A% #E -

RBE-ZE—=F+-_A=+—HI
FE OBENEREZHE A
132,000,000 (ZF— 4 : ) - &
H -+ 40,000,000 BB AR #E 2 T N 2 A
B & ([ME &) LA }292,000,00015 f& A%
BETAABINERER (B - 18
BERESSIE L EREN A TE
/6,224,000 7T - BHBERES
0.047%7T © mARTTEEREN R FE
N=IBEXEREEEENGE - AT
AREET

BRTESHBKE

Expected length

of employment

and services

volatility

(“Expected life”)
(in years)

Risk-free Expected

interest rate dividend yield

BRERK
RBER
(BABR)
() ERRRIE

56.42%

3 0.47% Nilf&
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38. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Options granted to Consultants

Date of grant

(dd-mm-yy)
BHAH
(A-R-%)

11.12.2013

The Group recognised the total expenses of

approximately HK$6,224,000 in relation to share

options granted by the Company.

(i)

(i)

the expected volatilities for the Options
granted to Employee were using the
average 3 years volatility of the Company’s
share price over the year for the
40,000,000 options granted to Employees
as at 11 December 2013.

the expected volatilities for the Options
granted to Consultants were using the
average 5 years volatility of the Company’s
share price over the year for the
92,000,000 options granted to
Consultants as at 11 December 2013.

the applicable risk free rates were
generated from Bloomberg based on the
Hong Kong Government 3 Years Bond
Yield and 5 Years Bond Yield, matching the
assumed life of the options.

the expected dividend yields were
estimated based on the historical dividend,
which was zero.

38. URZF EEHM @

BRESTE (»
(@) (&)
EFEEERE

Expected Expected life Risk-free Expected
volatility (in years) interest rate dividend yield

BRER
BARE () ERRTIE RARE=

73.23% 5 1.16% Nilf&
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SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b)

The values of the Options are subject to the
limitations of the Trinomial Option Pricing Model
and a number of assumptions which are subjective
and difficult to ascertain. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December
2013 were 156,166,633.

If options are forfeited before expiration or lapsed,
the related share-based payment will be
transferred directly to retained earnings/
accumulated losses.

39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 7 February 2014, Mr. Li Qunsheng has been
appointed as independent non-executive director,
chairman of the audit committee, member of the
nomination committee and member of the
remuneration committee of the Company; and Mr.
Cheung Wai Tak has resigned as independent
non-executive director, chairman of the audit
committee, member of the nomination committee
and member of the remuneration committee of
the Company.

On 14 February 2014, Mr. Yuan Wei has been
appointed as authorized representative,
compliance officer, chairman of the nomination
committee and chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company, and Mr. Chen Hong
has resigned as executive director, chairman of
the Board, authorized representative, compliance
officer, chairman of the nomination committee and
chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Company;

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continueq) 39. /Hﬁ ‘fﬁglﬁ (%)

154

The Company entered into the an agreement with
the purchaser pursuant to which the Company
has agreed to sell, and the purchaser has agreed
to purchase, the entire share capital of Everjoy
Technology Development Corporation and Everjoy
International Media Corporation (“Everjoy”) on 31
October 2013 (after trading hours) at the
consideration, which was determined based on
the fair values of Everjoy assessed by the
independent professional valuer jointly appointed
by the parties to the agreement. The Company
also agreed to transfer its deposit of the online
ticketing system under the Software Development
Contract to the purchaser at the consideration,
which was determined based on the fair value of
the online ticketing system assessed by the
independent professional valuer jointly appointed
by the parties to the agreement.

On 27 February 2014, Roma Appraisals Limited,
being an independent professional valuer jointly
appointed by the parties to the agreement, issued
its reports on the fair values of Everjoy and online
ticketing system. Thus, the considerations for the
disposal of Everjoy at RMB20,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$26,368,000) and transfer of
online ticketing system at RMB2,800,000
(HK$3,584,000) has been fixed. The completion
of the disposal and transfer took place on 12
March 2014.

R-E—=F+A=+-—BHKRSER
&) ARBIHEEBFEI B E - R
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RZZE—WMF_A=++tAH " HEs
WHTERZREZBLEEGLEMES
B E B R ARGk R g E BT
EBE 2 ANFETIELRE - Bt &
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(Continued)

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 29
June 2012 in respect of the Company’s acquisition
of the Subsidiaries, (i) the vendor of Everjoy
International guarantees that the aggregated
audited net profit after tax of Everjoy International
for the two years ended 31 December 2012 will
not be less than HK$24,000,000; and (i) the
vendor of Everjoy Technology guarantees to the
Company that the aggregated audited net profits
after tax of Everjoy Technology for the two years
ended 31 December 2012 shall not be less than
HK$2,500,000. The considerations for the
Company'’s acquisition of the Subsidiaries will be
adjusted and reduced if the Profit Guarantees are
not met.

As the aggregated audited net profit after tax of
the Subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2011 have partially met the Profit Guarantees, the
Company has issued (i) the Profit-linked EICN in
the principal amount of HK$8,635,956 to the
vendor of Everjoy International and (i) the Profit-
linked ETCN in the principal amount of
HK$2,611,906 to the vendor of Everjoy
Technology.

As the Subsidiaries have not recorded any net
profit after tax for the year ended 31 December
2012 and therefore failed to meet the Profit
Guarantees, the Company is no longer required
to issue any further Profit-linked EICN or Profit-
linked ETCN. As a result, the considerations for
the Company’s acquisition of the Subsidiaries are
deemed to be adjusted and reduced to
HK$60,235,956 for Everjoy International and
HK$17,611,906 for Everjoy Technology, which
have been settled by the Company in full.

ZZ—-=f5% - ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continueq) 39. /Hﬁ ‘fﬁglﬁ (%)

4. On 6 March 2014, the Company has redeemed 4. RZZFE—NWFE=A/XB ' AR ERE

one of the Convertible Notes 2011D with the A ABA - BE[0 A5 510,000,000
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 in BT _F——FREREED - A
accordance with notice from the holder. The N aEIEf A& AN £ 582,800,000/8 T2
Company is contacting the holder of the ZE——FABRBREEDZEFEEA
Convertible Notes 2011D with the principal AERATRRER - RAFHRAH -
amount of HK$2,800,000 in order to settle the ARRREAEERSE AT EE S
convertible notes. As at the date of this report, B MARAIEHTELES -

the Company has not received any reply or notice
from the holder, and the Company has the funds
available for redemption.

5. On 7 March 2014, the directors of the Company 5. RZZE—NF=A+H AREIES
proposed to the shareholders of the Company to MARERREZN_Z—HF=A
refresh the existing general mandate by way of ZHNBEBERTZREFIARE LB
granting the new general mandate at the BEH—MEESAENRE K
extraordinary general meeting to be held on 28 PR o

156 March 2014.
40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40. LEE BB
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to HETHREBLEEEY  WHEAFELZE

conform to the current year’s presentation. FFR o
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